
 

GPO Box 2983, Melbourne VIC 3001   
Telephone:  1300 341 665  |  Email: regorgs@roc.gov.au 

Website: www.roc.gov.au 

12 November 2019 

Professor Trent Twomey 
President, Queensland Branch 
Pharmacy Guild of Australia 
 
Dear Professor Twomey 
 
Re: – Pharmacy Guild of Australia, Queensland Branch - financial report for year ending 30 
June 2019 (FR2019/184) 
 

I refer to the financial report of the Queensland Branch. The documents were lodged with the Registered 
Organisations Commission (ROC) on 25 October 2019.   

The financial report has been filed. The financial report was filed based on a primary review.  This 
involved confirming the financial reporting timelines required under s.253, s.265, s.266 and s.268 of the 
Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009 (RO Act) have been satisfied, all documents required 
under s.268 of the RO Act were lodged and that various disclosure requirements under the Australian 
Accounting Standards, RO Act and reporting guidelines have been complied with.  A primary review 
does not examine all disclosure requirements. Please note that the financial report for the year ending 
30 June 2020 may be subject to an advanced compliance review. 

You are not required to take any further action in respect of the report lodged. However I make the 
following comment to assist you when you next prepare a financial report.    

Nil activity disclosure 

The officer’s declaration statement included a nil activity disclosure in respect of a balance within the 

general fund [RG17(d)]. Having regard to the definition of “general fund” in the glossary on page 11 of 

the reporting guidelines it would appear that the balance of total consolidated equity of $10,202,428 is 

the balance of the general fund and no nil activity disclosure applies.  

Reporting Requirements 
The ROC website provides several factsheets in relation to the financial reporting process and 
associated timelines.  The website also contains the s.253 reporting guidelines and a model set of 
financial statements.  The ROC recommends that reporting units use these model financial statements 
to assist in complying with the RO Act, the reporting guidelines and Australian Accounting 
Standards.  Access to this information is available via this link. 

If you have any questions about the above or the reporting requirements, please do not hesitate to 
contact me by email at stephen.kellett@roc.gov.au.  

Yours faithfully 

 

Stephen Kellett 
Financial Reporting 
Registered Organisations Commission 

Australian Government 

Registered Organisations Commission 

http://www.roc.gov.au/
http://www.roc.gov.au/running-a-registered-organisation/financial-reporting
mailto:stephen.kellett@roc.gov.au


The Pharmacy Guild of Australia (Queensland Branch) and its controlled entities 

s.268 Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009 

Certificate by prescribed designated officer 

Certificate for the period ended 30 June 2019 

I, Trent Twomey, being the Branch President of The Pharmacy Guild of Australia 
Queensland Branch certify: 

• that the documents lodged herewith are copies of the full report for The Pharmacy 
Guild of Australia Queensland Branch for the period ended referred to in s.268 of the 
Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009; and 

• that the full report was provided to members of the reporting unit on 30th of 
September 2019; and 

• that the full report was presented to a general meeting of members of the reporting 
unit on 22nd of October 2019 in accordance with s.266 of the Fair Work (Registered 
Organisations) Act 2009. 

Signature of prescribed designated officer: ··: ... ... .......................................... . ................. . 

Name of prescribed designated officer: ............. Trent Twomey ............................................... . 

Title of prescribed designated officer: ................ Branch President.. .. m••············--···········"······•· 
Dated: .......... :!!:.~/t.<?./4 .. 1.: ................................................................................................... . 
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The Pharmacy Guild of Australia (Queensland Branch) 
And its controlled entities 

Operating report 
for the year ended 30 June 2019 

The committee presents its report on The Pharmacy Guild of Australia (Queensland Branch) for the financial year 
ended 30 June 2019. 

(a) Review of principal activities, the results of those activities and any significant changes in the nature of 
those activities during the year 

(i) The Pharmacy Guild of Australia (Queensland Branch) is an employers' organisation 
servicing the needs of proprietors of independent community pharmacies and to represent 
their interests in industrial matters. 

(ii) The Pharmacy Guild of Australia (Queensland Branch) assists the National Council and 
the National Executive of The Pharmacy Guild of Australia (''the Guild") in carrying out 
the overall policy and objectives of the Guild. 

(iii) Included in the Annual Report are the various reports compiled by The Pharmacy Guild of 
Australia (Queensland Branch)'s President, Director and Officers outlining the activities 
for the year. There were no significant changes in the nature of these activities during the 
year under review. 

(b) Significant changes in financial affairs 
There have been no significant changes in The Pharmacy Guild of Australia (Queensland 
Branch)'s financial affairs during the period to which this report relates. 

(c) Right of members to resign 
Under Section 174 of the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009 and Rule 36 of 
the Constitution of the Guild, a member may resign from membership by written notice 
addressed and delivered to the Branch Director. 

(d) Officers & members who are superannuation fund trustee(s) (include position details) or director ofa 
company that is a superannuation fund trustee where being a member or officer of a registered 
organisation is a criterion for them holding such position: 

(i) Trent Twomey is a director of Guild Trustee Services Limited, the Trustee for the Guild 
Retirement Fund, which includes GuildSuper, Child Care Super and GuildPersion. 

(e) Number of members: 
As at 30 June 2019, the number of members of the reporting unit was 721 including 
Honorary Life and 50 Year Life Members. 

(f) Number of employees: 
As at 30 June 2019, the total number of employees of the reporting entity was 49. 

(g) Names of Committee of Management members and period positions held during the financial year: 
The following persons were members of the committee of management of The Pharmacy 
Guild of Australia (Queensland Branch) during the reporting period, unless otherwise 
stated: 

Branch Executive 

COwen 
K Sclavos 
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The Pharmacy Guild of Australia (Queensland Branch) 
And its controlled entities 

Branch Committee 

P Jaffar 
T Logan 
COwen 
K Sclavos 
L Walker 
CWhalan 

(h) Prescribed and other Information: 

V Kumar 
A Milostic 
A Seeto 
TTwomey 
FWatson 
RXynias 

(i) Insurance of Officers: During the financial year, The Phannacy Guild of Australia 
(Queensland Branch) paid insurance to cover all officers of The Pharmacy Guild of 
Australia (Queensland Branch). The officers of The Pharmacy Guild of Australia 
(Queensland Branch) covered by the insurance policy include all the committee of 
management. Other officers covered by the contract are the management of The 
Pharmacy Guild of Australia (Queensland Branch). The liabilities insured include costs 
and expenses that may be incurred in defending civil or criminal proceedings that may be 
brought against the officers in their capacity as officers of The Pharmacy Guild of 
Australia (Queensland Branch). 

Signature of designated officer: ........ 

Name and title of designated officer: 

Dated: 13 September 2019 
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Grant Thornton 

Auditor's Independence Declaration 

Grant Thornton Audit Pty Ltd 
King George Central 
Level 18 
145 Ann Street 
Brisbane QLD 4000 
GPO Box 1008 
Brisbane QLD 4001 

T +6173222 0200 

To the Branch Committee Members of The Pharmacy Guild of Australia (Queensland 
Branch) 

As lead auditor for the audit of The Pharmacy Guild of Australia (Queensland Branch) for the year ended 30 June 2019, I declare 
that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, there have been: 

a no contraventions of the auditor independence requirements in relation to the audit; and 

b no contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audit. 

e~:=~ 
Chartered Accountants 

~::O!/'°"¥ 
Partner -Audit & Assurance 

Brisbane, 13 September 2019 

ACN-130 913 594 

Grant Thornton Audit Ply Ltd ACN 130 913 594 a subsidiary or related entity of Grant Thornton 
Australia Limited ABN 41127 556 389 'Grant Thornton' refers to the brand under which the Grant 
Thornton member firms provide assurance, tax and advisory services to their clients and/or refers 
to one or more member firms, as the context requires. Grant Thornton Australia Limited is a 
member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a 
worldwide partnership. GTIL and each member firm is a separate legal entity. Services are 
delivered by the member firms. GTIL does not provide services to clients. GTIL and its member 
firms are not agents of, and do not obligate one another and are not liable for one another's acts or 
omissions. In the Australian context only, the use of the tenn 'Grant Thornton' may refer to Grant 
Thornton Australia Limited ABN 41127 556 389 and its Australian subsidiaries and related entities. 
Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation. 

www.grantthornton.com.au 



Grant Thornton 

Independent Auditor's Report 

Grant Thornton Audit Pty Ltd 
King George Central 
Level 18 
145 Ann Street 
Brisbane QLD 4000 
GPO Box 1008 
Brisbane QLD 4001 

T +61 7 3222 0200 

To the Members of The Pharmacy Guild of Australia (Queensland Branch) 

Report on the audit of the financial report 

Opinion 

We have audited the financial report of The Pharmacy Guild of Australia (Queensland Branch} (the reporting unit}, which 
comprises the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2019, the statement of comprehensive income, statement of 
changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year ended 30 June 2019, notes to the financial statements, 
including a summary of significant accounting policies, the committee of management statement, the subsection 255(2A} 
report and the officer declaration statement. 

In our opinion, the accompanying financial report presents fairly, in all material aspects, the financial position of The 
Pharmacy Guild of Australia (Queensland Branch} as at 30 June 2019, and its financial performance and cash flows for 
the year ended on that date in accordance with: 

a the Australian Accounting Standards; and 

b any other requirements imposed by the Reporting Guidelines or Part 3 of Chapter 8 of the Fair Work (Registered 
Organisations) Act 2009 (the RO Act}. 

We declare that management's use of the going concern basis in the preparation of the financial statements of the 
reporting unit is appropriate. 

Basis for opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Our responsibilities under those standards are 
further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report section of our report. We are 
independent of the reporting unit in accordance with the ethical requirements of the Accounting Professional and Ethical 
Standards Board's APES 110 Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the Code} that are relevant to our audit of the 
financial report in Australia. We have also fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

ACN-130 913 594 

Grant Thornton Audit Pty Ltd ACN 130 913 594 a subsidiary or related entity of Grant Thornton 
Australia Limited ABN 41 127 556 389 'Grant Thornton' refers to the brand under which the Grant 
Thornton member firms provide assurance, tax and advisory services to their clients and/or refers 
to one or more member firms, as the context requires. Grant Thornton Australia Limited is a 
member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a 
worldwide partnership. GTIL and each member firm is a separate legal entity. Services are 
delivered by the member firms. GTIL does not provide services to clients. GTIL and Its member 
firms are not agents of, and do not obligate one another and are not liable for one another's acts or 
omissions. In the Australian context only, the use of the term 'Grant Thornton' may refer to Grant 
Thornton Australia Limited ABN 41 127 556 389 and its Australian subsidiaries and related entities. 
Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation, 

www.grantthornton.com.au 



Information other thani the financial report and auditor's report thereon 

The Committee of Management is responsible for the other information. The other information obtained at the date of this auditor's 
report is in the operating report accompanying the financial report. 

Our opinion on the financial report does not cover the other information and accordingly we do not express any form of assurance 
conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the financial report, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider 
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial report or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise 
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of 
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Responsibilities of committee of management for the financial report 

The committee of management of the reporting unit is responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a true and 

fair view in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the RO Act, and for such internal control as the committee of 

management determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair view and is free from 

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial report, the committee of management is responsible for assessing the reporting unit's ability to continue 

as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting 

unless the Committee of Management either intend to liquidate the reporting unit or to cease operations, or have no realistic 

alternative but to do so. 

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial report 

Our objective is to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as a whole is free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of 
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards will always detect a 
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in 
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of this financial 
report. 

As part of an audit in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards, we exercise professional judgement and maintain 
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether due to fraud or error, design and 
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide 
a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one 
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of 
internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate 
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the reporting unit's internal 
control. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related 
disclosures made by the committee of management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of the committee of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast 
significant doubt on the reporting unit's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty 
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial report or, if such 
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the 
date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the reporting unit to cease to continue as a 
going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial report, including the disclosures, and whether the 
financial report represents the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

• Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within 
the reporting unit to express an opinion on the financial report. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and 
performance of the reporting unit audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion. 

© 2019 Grant Thornton Australia Limited. 



We communicate with the committee of management regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit 
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We declare that Hannah Hiscox is an approved auditor, a member of Chartered Accountants Australia and New Zealand and holds 
a current Public Practice Certificate. 

(?raAL TILorYLX.orv 
qrant Thornton Audit Pty Ltd 
Chartered Accountants 

HE Hiscox 

Partner - Audit & Assurance Services 
Registration number ( as registered by the Commissioner under the RO Act): M2017 /142 

Brisbane, 13 September 2019 

© 2019 Grant Thornton Australia Limited. 



The Pharmacy Guild of Australia (Queensland Branch) 
and Its controlled entitles 

Report required under subsection 255(2A) 
for the year ended 30 June 2019 

The committee of management presents the expenditure report as required under subsection 
255(2A) on the reporting unit for the year ended 30 June 2019. 

2019 - Consolidated Expenditure as required under s. 255(2A) RO Act 

Donations to political 

parties, 0.39% 

Operatil'!g-cos_ts 
. $7.59% 

Legal costs, 0.37% 

Advertising 
1.43% 

■ Remuneration and other 
employment-related costs and 
expenses - employees 

■ Advertising 

Operating costs 

■ Donations to political parties 

■ Legal costs 

2018 - Consolidated Expenditure as required under s. 255(2A) RO Act 

Donations to political 

parties, 0.35% 
Legal costs, 0.51% 
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■ Remuneration and other 
employment-related costs and 

expenses - employees 

■ Advertising 

• Operating costs 

■ Donations to political parties 

■ Leg a I costs 



The Pharmacy Guild of Australia (Queensland Branch) 
and its controlled entities 

2019 - Parent Expenditure as required under s. 255(2A) RO Act 

Donations to political 
parties, 0.38% 1 

Legal costs, 0.31% 

1.38% 

• Remuneration and other 
employment-related costs 
and expenses - employees 

■ Advertising 

• Operating costs 

• Donations to political 
parties 

• Legal costs 

2018 - Parent Expenditure as required under s. 255(2A) RO Act 

Donations to polltlca.!_ 
parties, 0.33% Legal costs, 0.45% 

1.57% 

• Remuneration and other 
employment-related costs and 
expenses - employees 

• Advertising 

Operating costs 

• Donations to political parties 

• Legal costs 

Signature of designated officer. ············~········ .. ·····•................ . ....................... . 

Name and title of designated officer: ....... Trent Twomey ............ ranch President.. ............... . 

Dated: ....... 13 September 2019 ........................ _. ................... ..., ......... .,. ........ _." ............... -•.•-··-··,·· .......................... _._"" ... ·._.,..~ .. - , 
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TIie l'ltannacy Guild of Au•fralla (Queensland Branclt) 

and Its controlled enflfl•• 

Committee of Management Statement 

On 13 September 2019 the Branch Committee of The Pharmacy Guild of Australia 
(Queensland Branch) (the "reporting unit") passed the following resolution in relation to the general 
purpose financial report (GPFR) of the reporting unit for the financial year ended 30 June 2019: 

The Branch Committee declares that in its opinion: 

(a) the financial statements and notes comply with the Australian Accounting Standards; 
(b) the financial statements and notes comply with any other requirements imposed by the reporting 
guidelines or Part 3 of Chapter 8 of the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009 ( the RO Act); 
(c) the financial statements and notes give a true and fair view of the financial performance, financial 
position and cash flows of the reporting unit for the financial year to which they relate; 
(d) there are reasonable grounds to believe that the reporting unit will be able to pay its debts as and 
when they become due and payable; and 
(e) during the financial year to which the GPFR relates and since the end of that year: 

(i) meetings of the committee of management were held in accordance with the rules of the 
organisation; and 

(ii) the financial affairs of the reporting unit have been managed in accordance with the rules of 
the organisation; and 

(iii) the financial records of the reporting unit have been kept and maintained in accordance with 
the RO Act; and 

(iv) the financial records of the reporting unit have been kept, as far as practicable, in a 
consistent manner with each of the other reporting units of the organisation; and 

(v) where information has been sought in any request by a member of the reporting unit or 
Commissioner duly made under section 272 of the RO Act has been provided to the 
member or Commissioner; and 

(vi) where any order for inspection of financial records has been made by the Fair Work 
Commission under section 273 of the RO Act, there has been compliance. 

This declaration is made in accordance ~ith a ~ I ion of the Committee of Management. 
,.. 1/ 

Signature of designated officer: •••••• 4. ................................ . .................. . 
Name and title of designated officer:? NT TWOMEY, BR PRESIDENT 

Dated this 13th day of September 2019 
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TIie Pftarmacy Guild of A1111tralla (Q-land Branch} 

and It• contmlled entltl•• 

Statement of Comprehensive Income 
for the year ended 30 June 2019 

Notes 

Revenue 3 

Employee benefit expenses 4b 
Depreciation and amortisation 4c 
Impairment (expense) I reversal 4d 
Finance costs 4e 
Other expenses 4a 
Profit from continuing operations 

Total profit before income tax 

Income tax expense 5 

Profit after income tax 

Other comprehensive income 

Total comprehensive income for the year 

Consolidated Entity 
2019 2018 

$ $ 

11,608,740 10,972,715 

(4,311,301) (3,907,965) 
(278,535) (290,091) 

(4,035) 

(6,410,427) (5,526,385) 

608,477 1,244,239 

608,477 1,244,239 

608,477 1,244,239 

608,477 1,244,239 

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the notes. 
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Parent Entity 
2019 2018 

$ $ 

12,005,625 11,458,219 

(4,311,301) (3,907,965) 
(152,358) (164,205) 

(4,035) 

(6,807,312) (6,011,889) 

734,654 1,370,125 

734,854 1,370,125 

734,664 1,370,125 

734,654 1,370,125 



The l'harmacy Guild of Auatr•II• (Queenaland Branch) 

and It• controlled entitle• 

Statement of Financial Position 
as at 30 June 2019 

Consolidated Entity 
Notes 2019 2018 

$ $ 
Assets 
Current 
Cash and cash equivalents 8 4,833,226 5,872,227 
Trade and other receivables 9 2,346,863 1,954,444 
Other current assets 10 1,316,811 1,103,229 

Total Current Assets 8,496,900 8,929,900 

Non-Current 
Other financial assets 11 2,386,374 492,223 
Property, plant and equipment 13 5,128,361 4,493,631 
Intangible assets 14 16,828 54,066 
Total Non-Current Assets 7,531,583 5,039,920 

Total Assets 16,028,463 13,969,820 

Liabilities 
Current 
Trade and other payables 15 5,243,031 3,871,573 
Short-term employee provisions 16 438,800 395,224 
Total Current Liabllltles 5,681,831 4,266,797 

Non-Current 
Long-term employee provisions 16 144,204 109,072 
Total Non-Current Liabilities 144,204 109,072 

Total Liabilities 5,826,035 4,375,869 

Net Assets 10,202,428 9,593,951 

Equity 
Retained earnings 10,202,428 9,593,951 

Total Equity 10,202,428 9,593,951 

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the notes. 
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Parent Entity 
2019 2018 

$ $ 

4,730,144 5,807,620 
3,054,307 2,617,372 
1,278,042 1,103,229 

9,062,493 9,528,221 

6,558,064 4,659,524 
1,208,734 452,216 

16,828 54,066 

7,783,628 5,165,806 

16,846,119 14,694,027 

5,808,624 4,469,894 
438,800 395,224 

6,247,424 4,865,118 

144,204 109,072 
144,204 109,072 

6,391,628 4,974,190 

10,454,491 9,719,837 

10,454,491 9,719,837 
10,454,491 9,719,837 



The flllermecy Guild of Australia (Queensland Branch) 

end If• controlled entitles 

Statement of Changes in Equity 
for the year ended 30 June 2019 

Retained 
Earnings 

$ 

Consolidated entity 
Balance at 1 July 2017 8,349,712 
Transfer reserves 

Profit after income tax 1,244,239 
Other comprehensive income 
Total comprehensive income 1,244,239 
Balance at 30 June 2018 9,593,951 

Balance at 1 July 2018 9,593,951 
Transfer reserves 

Profit after income tax 608,477 
Other comprehensive income 
Total comprehensive income 608,477 
Balance at 30 June 2019 10.20~428 

Parent entity 

Balance at 1 July 2017 8,349,712 
Transfer reserves 

Profit after income tax 1,370,125 
Other comprehensive income 
Total comprehensive income 1,370,125 

Balance at 30 June 2018 9,719,837 

Balance at 1 July 2018 9,719,837 
Transfer reserves 

Profit after income tax 734,654 
Other comprehensive income 

Total comprehensive income 734,654 
Balance at 30 June 2019 1014541491 

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the notes. 
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Total 

$ 

8,349,712 

1,244,239 

1,244,239 
9,593,951 

9,593,951 

608,477 

808,477 

10.20~428 

8,349,712 

1,370,125 

1,370,125 

9,719,837 

9,719,837 

734,654 

734,654 

1014541491 



Tfte Plt■rm■cy Guild of A11atr■II■ (Q11e■n■l■nd Br■ncltJ 

and It• controlled entltl•• 

Statement of Cash Flows 
for the year ended 30 June 2019 

Cash Flow from Operating Activities 
Receipts from members and customers 
Receipts from other reporting units/controlled entity 
Payments to suppliers and employees 
Payments to other reporting units/controlled entity 
Interest received 
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 

Cash Flow from Investing Activities 
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 
Purchase of units in controlled entity 
Purchase of FIIG investments 
Proceeds from sale of FIIG investments 
Payment for property, plant and equipment 

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 

Cash Flow from Financing Activities 
Repayment of borrowings 
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 

Net increase/(decrease) in cash held 
Cash at beginning of year 
Cash at end of year 

Notes 

19b 

19b 

19a 

8 

Consolidated Entity 
2019 2018 

$ $ 

11,394,528 9,226,651 
1,540,829 1,607,864 

(10,372,802) (9, 185, 172) 
(1,098,997) (1,143,344) 

270,000 65,420 

1,733,558 571,419 

46,361 

(2,045,351) (496,258) 
151,200 

{878,408} (200,820! 

(21772,559) (650,717! 

(1,039,001) (79,298) 

518721227 5,951,525 
4,833,226 5,872,227 

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the notes. 
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Parent Entity 
2019 2018 

$ $ 

11,212,714 9,089,530 
1,577,692 1,607,864 

(10,266,326) (9,112,658) 
(1,098,997) (1,143,344) 

270,000 65,420 

1,895,083 506,812 

46,361 
(4,389) (7,301) 

(2,045,351) (496,258) 
151,200 

!874,019) (193,519} 

!2?721559) (650,717) 

(1,077,476) (143,905) 
5,807,620 51951,525 
4,730,144 5,807,620 



Tfle Pllanrtacy Guild of Australia (Ou-•l•nd .,..,..,,., 

and,,. contn>llad Hrltla 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
for the year ended 30 June 2019 

This financial report includes the consolidated financial statements and notes of The Pharmacy Guild of 
Australia (Queensland Branch) and controlled entities ('Consolidated Group' or 'Group'), and the separate 
financial statements and notes ofThe Pharmacy Guild of Australia (Queensland Branch) as an individual parent 
entity ('Parent Entity'). The Pharmacy Guild of Australia (Queensland Branch) is an organisation registered under the Fair 
Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009, which requires four column financial statements for a consolidated group. 
The nature of the operations and the principal activities of the Guild are described in the Operating Report. 

1. Statement of •lgnlflcant accounting pollcle• 

Basis of preparation 

Reporting Basis and Conventions 
The financial report is a general purpose financial report that has been prepared in accordance with Australian 
Accounting Standards, Australian Accounting Interpretations, other authoritative pronouncements of the 
Australian Accounting Standards Board and the requirements of the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 
2009. 

The Pharmacy Guild of Australia (Queensland Branch) is a not-for-profit entity incorporated and domiciled in Australia. 

Australian Accounting Standards set out accounting policies that the AASB has concluded would result in a 
financial report containing relevant and reliable information about transactions, events and conditions to which 
they apply. Material accounting policies adopted in the preparation of this financial report are presented 
below and have been consistently applied unless otherwise stated. 

The financial report has been prepared on an accruals basis and is based on historical costs, modified, where 
applicable, by the measurement at fair value of selected non-current assets, financial assets and financial 
liabilities. 

The financial statements are presented in Australian dollars. 

This financial report was authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution passed by the Branch Committee 
on 13 September 2019. The Branch Committee have the power to amend and reissue the financial report. 

Accounting policies 

a. Principles of consolidation 

A controlled entity is any entity over which The Pharmacy Guild of Australia (Queensland Branch) has the power 
to govern the financial and operating policies so as to obtain benefits from its activities. In assessing the power 
to govern, the existence and effect of holdings of actual and potential voting rights are considered. 

A list of controlled entities is contained in Note 12 to the financial statements. 

As at reporting date, the assets and liabilities of all controlled entities have been incorporated into the 
consolidated financial statements as well as their results for the year then ended. 

All inter-group balances and transactions between entities in the consolidated group, including any unrealised 
profits or losses, have been eliminated on consolidation. 
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Notes to the Financial Statements 
for the year ended 30 June 2019 

1. Statement of significant accounting policies (continued) 

b. Income tax 

Parent entity 

The Pharmacy Guild of Australia (Queensland Branch) is exempt from income tax under Section 50-1 of the Income Tax 
Assessment Act 1997 however still has obligations for Fringe Benefit Tax (FBT) and the Goods and Services Tax (GST). 

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of GST except: 
- where the amount of GST incurred is not recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office; and 
- for receivables and payables. 

The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of receivables and 
payables. 

Cash flows are included in the statement of cash flows on a gross basis. The GST component of cash flows arising from 
investing and financing activities which is recoverable from, or payable to, the Australian Taxation Office is classified within 
operating cash flows. 

Controlled entities 

The income tax expense for the year comprises current income tax expense and deferred tax expense. 

Current income tax expense charged to the profit or loss is the tax payable on taxable income calculated using 
applicable income tax rates enacted, or substantially enacted, as at reporting date. Current tax liabilities are 
therefore measured at the amounts expected to be paid to the relevant taxation authority. 

Deferred income tax expense reflects movements in deferred tax asset and deferred tax liability balances during 
the year as well unused tax losses. 

Current and deferred income tax expense is charged or credited directly to equity instead of the profit or loss 
when the tax relates to items that are credited or charged directly to equity. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are ascertained based on temporary difference arising between the tax bases 
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. Deferred tax assets also result 
where amounts have been fully expensed but future tax deductions are available. No deferred income tax will be 
recognised from the initial recognition of an asset or liability. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when 
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at reporting 
date. Their measurement also reflects the manner in which management expects to recover or settle the 
carrying amount of the related asset or liability. 

Deferred tax assets relating to temporary differences and unused tax losses are recognised only to the extent 
that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the benefits of the deferred tax asset 
can be utilised. 
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Notes to the Financial Statements 
for the year ended 30 June 2019 

1. Statement of significant accounting policies (continued) 

c. Property, plant and equipment 

Each class of property, plant and equipment is carried at cost less, where applicable, any accumulated depreciation and 
impairment losses. 

Depreciation 

The depreciable amount of all fixed assets, excluding freehold land, is depreciated on a straight line basis over the 

asset's useful life to the consolidated group commencing from the time the asset is held ready for use. The 
depreciation rates used for each class of assets are: 

Class of Fixed Asset 
Buildings 
Plant and Equipment 

2019 
2.0 -50.0% 

5.0 -100.0% 

2018 
2.0-20.0% 

5.0-100.0% 

The assets' residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting date. 

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised when 

control of the asset has passed to the buyer. These gains or losses are included in the statement of profit or loss and 
other comprehensive income. 

d. Financial instruments 
Recognition and derecognition 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Group becomes a party to the contradual provisions of 

the financial instrument. 

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or when 
the financial asset and all substantial risks and rewards are transferred. A financial liability is derecognised when ii is 

extinguished, discharged, cancelled or expires. 

Classification and initial measurement of financial assets 
Except for those trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component and are measured at the 
transaction price, all financial assets are initially measured at fair value adjusted for transaction costs (where applicable). 

Financial assets are classified into the following categories upon initial recognition: 

- amortised cost 
- fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) 
- fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) 

The classification is determined by both: 

- The entity"s business model for managing the financial asset 

- The contradual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset 

All income and expenses relating to financial assets that are recognised in profit or loss are presented within finance costs, 

finance income or other financial Items, except for impairment of trade receivables, which is presented within other expenses. 
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Notes to the Financial Statements 
for the year ended 30 June 2019 

1. Statement of significant accounting policies (continued) 

d. Financial lnatNments (continued) 

Subsequent measurement offinanclal assets 

Financial assets at amortised cost 
Financial assets are measured at amortised cost if the assets meet the following conditions (and are not designated as 

FVTPL): 

- they are held within a business model whose objective is to hold the financial assets and collect its contractual cash flows 

- the contractual terms of the financial assets give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on 
the principal amount outstanding 

After initial recognition, these are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Discounting is omitted 

where the effect of discounting is immaterial. The Group's cash and cash equivalents, trade and most other receivables 
fall Into this category of financial instruments as well as the FIIG investment portfolio that was previously classified as 
held-to-maturity under AASB 139. 

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) 
Financial assets that are held within a different business model other than 'hold to collect' or 'hold to collect and sell' are 
categorised at fair value through profit and loss. Further, irrespective of business model financial assets whose 

contractual cash flows are not solely payments of principal and interest are accounted for at FVTPL. All derivative financial 
instruments fall into this category, except for those designated and effective as hedging instruments, for which the hedge 
accounting requirements apply (see below). 

In the separate financial statements of the parent, the category also contains an investment in the Guild Properties 
(Queensland) Unit trust. The Guild accounts for the investment at FVTPL and did not make the irrevocable election to 

account for the investment in the trust at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI). The fair value was 
determined in line with the requirements of AASB 9, which does not allow for measurement at cost. 

Assets in this category are measured at fair value with gains or losses recognised in profit or loss. The fair values of 
financial asets in this category are determined using a valuation technique as no active market exists. 

Impairment of Financial assets 
AASB 9's impairment requirements use more forward looking information to recognise expected credit losses - the 

'expected credit losses (ECL) model'. This replaced AASB 139's 'incurred loss model'. Instruments within the scope oflhe 
new requirements included trade receivables 

Recognition of credit losses is no longer dependent on the Group first identifying a credit loss event. Instead the Group 
considers a broader range of information when assessing credit risk and measuring expected credit losses, including past 

events, current conditions, reasonable and supportable forecasts that affect the expected collectability of the future cash 
flows of the instrument. 

In applying this forward-looking approach, a distinction is made between: 

- financial instruments that have not deteriorated significantly in credit quality since initial recognition or that have low 
credit risk ('Stage 1 ') and 
- financial instruments that have deteriorated significantly in credit quality since initial recognition and whose credit risk is 

not low ('Stage 2'). 

'Stage 3' would cover financial assets that have objective evidence of impairment at the reporting date. 
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Notes to the Financial Statements 
for the year ended 30 June 2019 

1. Statement of significant accounting policies (continued) 

d, Financial instruments (continued) 

'12-month expected credit losses' are recognised for the first category while 'lifetime expected credit losses' are 
recognised for the second category. 

Measurement of the expected credit losses is determined by a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses over the 
expected life of the financial instrument. 

Trade and other receivables 

The Group makes use of a simplified approach in accounting for trade and other receivables and records the loss 
allowance as lifetime expected credit losses. These are the expected shortfalls in contractual cash flows, considering 
the potential for default at any point during the life of the financial instrument. In calculating, the Group uses its historical 
experience, external indicators and forward-looking information to calculate the expected credit losses using a provision 

matrix. 

The Group assess impairment of trade receivables on a collective basis as they possess shared credit risk characteristics 
they have been grouped based on the days past due. 

Classification and measurement of financial liabilities 

The Group's financial liabilities include trade and other payables. 

Financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value, and, where applicable, adjusted for transaction costs unless the 
Group designated a financial liability at fair value through profit or loss. 

Subsequently, financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. 

All interest-related charges and, if applicable, changes in an instrument's fair value that are reported in profit or loss are 
included within finance costs or finance income. 

Accounting pollcy applicable before 1 July 2018 

Recognition and initial measurement 

Financial instruments, incorporating financial assets and financial liabilities, are recognised when the consolidated 
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. For financial assets, this is equivalent 
to the date that the entity commits itself to either purchase or sell the asset (i.e. Trade date accounting is 

adopted). 

Financial instruments are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs where the instrument is 
classified 'at fair value through profit and loss' in which case transaction costs are expensed to profit or loss 

immediately. 

Classification and subsequent measurement 

Financial instruments are subsequently measured at either fair value, amortised cost using the effective interest 
rate method or cost. Fair value represents the amount for which an asset could be exchanged or a liability 

settled, between knowledgeable, willing parties. Where available, quoted prices in an active market are used to 
determine fair value. In other circumstances, valuation techniques are adopted. 
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Notes to the Financial Statements 
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1. Statement of significant accounting policies (continued) 

d. Financial Instruments (continued) 

Amortised cost is calculated as: (i) the amount at which the financial asset or financial liability is measured at 

initial recognition; (ii) less principal repayments; (iii) plus or minus the cumulative amortisation of the difference, 
if any, between the amount initially recognised and the maturity amount calculated, using the effective interest 
method; and (iv) less any reduction for impairment. 

The effective interest method is used to allocate interest income or interest expense over the relevant period and is 

equivalent to the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts (including fees, transactions costs 

and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life (or when this cannot be reliably predicted, the contractual 
term) of the financial instrument to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability. Revisions to expected 
future net cash flows will necessitate an adjustment to the carrying value with a consequential recognition of an income or 

expense in profit or loss. 

(i) Loans and receivables 

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an 
active market and are subsequently measured at amortised cost. 

(ii) Held-to-maturity investments 

Financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity dates that the reporting unit has the positive 

intent and ability to hold to maturity are classified as held-to-maturity investments. Held-to-maturity investments are 
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method less any impairment. 

(iii) Available-for-sale financial assets 
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative financial assets that are either designated as such or that 

are not classified in any of the other categories. They comprise investments in the equity of other entities where there 
is neither a fixed maturity nor fixed or determinable payments. 

Derecognit!on 

Financial assets are derecognised where the contractual rights to receipt of cash flows expires or the asset is transferred 
to another party whereby the consolidated entity no longer has any significant continuing involvement in the risks and 

benefits associated with the asset. Financial liabilities are derecognised where the related obligations are either 
discharged, cancelled or expire. The difference between the carrying value of the financial liability extinguished or 

transferred to another party and the fair value of consideration paid, including the transfer of non-cash assets or liabilities 
assumed is recognised in profit or loss. 

e. Impairment of non-financial assets 

At each reporting date, the consolidated entity reviews the carrying values of its tangible and intangible assets to 
determine whether there is any indication that those assets have been impaired. If such an indication exists, the 

recoverable amount of the asset, being the higher of the asset's fair value less costs of disposal and value-in-use, is 
compared to the asset's carrying value. Any excess of the asset's carrying value over its recoverable amount is expensed 
to the profit or loss. 
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1. Statement of significant accounting policies (continued) 

f. Intangibles 

Acquired intangible assets 
Acquired computer software licences are capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and install the 
specific software. 

All intangible assets are accounted for using the cost model whereby capitalised costs are amortised on a 

straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives, as these assets are considered finite. Residual values and useful 
lives are reviewed at each reporting date. In addition, they are subject to impairment testing as described in Note 1 e. 

The following useful lives are applied: 

Class of Intangible 
Software 

2019 

4 years 
2018 

4 years 

Amortisation is included within depreciation and amortisation. Subsequent expenditures on the maintenance of 

computer software are expensed as incurred. 

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. 
When an intangible asset is disposed of, the gain or loss on disposal is determined as the difference between the 
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, and is recognised in profit or loss within other income or other expenses. 

g. Employee benefits 

Provision is made for the consolidated entity's liability for employee benefits arising from services rendered by employees 
to balance date. Employee benefits that are expected to be settled within one year have been measured at the amounts 

expected to be paid when the liability is settled. Employee benefits payable later than one year have been measured at 
the present value of the estimated future cashflows to be made for those benefits. Those cash flows are discounted using 
market yields on high quality corporate bonds with terms to maturity that match the expected timing of cash flows. 

h. Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash is recognised at its nominal amount. Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and demand deposits, 
together with other short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which 
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. 

I. Revenue and other income 

Revenue comprises revenue from membership subscriptions, event and conferences, program funding, training courses 
and various other sources. Revenue from major products and services is shown in Note 3. Revenue is measured by 
reference to the fair value of consideration received or receivable by the Group for goods supplied and services provided, 
excluding GST, rebates, and trade discounts. Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can be measured 

reliably, collection is probable, the costs incurred orto be incurred can be measured reliably, and when the criteria for 
each of the Group's different activities have been met. Details of the activity-specific recognition criteria are described 

below. 

Membership subscriptions 

Revenue from subscriptions is accounted for on an accrual basis and is recorded as revenue in the year to which it 

relates. 
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f. Statement of significant accounting policies (continued) 

i. Revenue and other income (continued) 

Event and conference income 

Revenue from events and conferences is accounted for on an accrual basis and is recorded as revenue in the period that 
the event or conference occurs. 

Program funding 

The Group receives funding from government directly and via the National Secretariat to deliver specific programs. 
Grants relating to expense items are recognised as revenue over the periods necessary to match the grant to the costs 
they are compensating. It is the policy of the entity to treat grant monies as unexpended grants in the statement of 
financial position where the entity is contractually obliged to provide the services in a subsequent financial period to when 
the grant is received or in the case of specific project grants where the project has not been completed. 

Training course 

Revenue from training courses is accounted for on an accrual basis and is recorded as revenue proportionally over the 
duration of the training course. 

Sale of goods 

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised at the point of delivery as this corresponds to the transfer of 
significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods and the cessation of all involvement in those goods. 

Interest revenue 

Interest revenue is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective interest rate method. 

Distribution revenue 

Distribution revenue is recognised when the right to receive a distribution has been established. 

j. Finance costs 

All finance costs are recognised in the statement or profit or loss and other comprehensive income in the 
period in which they are incurred. 

k. Capitation fees and levies 

Capitation fees and levies recognised on an accrual basis and recorded as a revenue and/or expense in the year 
to which it relates. 

I. Goods and Services Tax (GST) 

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST, except where the amount of 
GST incurred is not recoverable from the Australian Tax Office. In these circumstances the GST is 
recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of an item of the expense. 

Receivables and payables in the statement of financial position are shown inclusive of GST. 
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1. Statement of significant accounting policies (continued) 

I. Goods and Services Tax (GST) [continued] 

Cash flows are presented in the statement of cash flows on a gross basis, except for the GST component of 
investing and financing activities, which are disclosed as operating cash flows. 

m. Leases 

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of 
ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases. 

Where an asset is acquired by means of a finance lease, the asset is capitalised at either the fair value of the lease 
property or, if lower, the present value of minimum lease payments at the inception of the contract and a liability is 
recognised at the same time and for the same amount. 

The discount rate used is the interest rate implicit in the lease. Leased assets are amortised over the period of the lease. 
Lease payments are allocated between the principal component and the interest expense. 

Operating lease payments are expensed on a straight-line basis which is representative of the pattern of benefits derived 
from the leased assets. 

Rental revenue from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. 
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased 
asset and recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 

n. Contingent liabilities and contingent assets 

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets are not recognised in the statement of financial position but are reported in 

the relevant notes. They may arise from uncertainty as to the existence of a liability or asset or represent an existing 
liability or asset in respect of which the amount cannot be reliably measured. Contingent assets are disclosed when 
settlement is probable but not virtually certain, and contingent liabilities are disclosed when settlement is greater than 
remote. 

o. Comparatives 

When required by Accounting Standards, comparative figures have been adjusted to conform to changes in presentation 

for the current financial year. 

p. Critical accounting estimates and Judgements 

The committee members evaluate estimates and judgements incorporated into the financial report based on historical 
knowledge and best available current information. Estimates assume a reasonable expectation of future events and are 

based on current trends and economic data, obtained both externally and within the consolidated entity. 

Impairment 

In assessing impairment, management estimates the recoverable amount of each asset or cash-generating unit, 

based on expected future cash flows and uses an interest rate to discount them. Estimation uncertainty relates to 
assumptions about future operating results and the determination of a suitable discount rate. 
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1, Statement of significant accounting policies (continued) 

p. Critical accounting estimates and Judgements (continued) 

Independent valuations are obtained periodically for the purpose of determining whether there are any indicators of 
impairment as required under AASB136 Impairment of Assets. When valuations are significantly different to the carrying 
amount of land and buildings, impairment or a reversal of impairment is taken up as required through profit or loss or in 
equity. 

Useful Jives of depreciable assets 
Management reviews its estimate of the useful lives of depreciable assets at each reporting date, based on the 
expected utility of the assets. Uncertainties in these estimates relate to technical obsolescence that may change 
the utility of certain software and IT equipment. 

Long service /eave 
The liability for Long Service Leave is recognised and measured at the present value of the estimated cash flows to 
be made in respect of all employees at the reporting date. In determining the present value of the liability, estimates 
of attrition rates and pay increases through promotion and inflation have been taken into account. 

q, Standards, amendments and Interpretations to existing standards that are not yet effective and have 
not been adopted early by the Group 

At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, certain new standards, amendments and 
interpretations to existing standards have been published but are not yet effective, and have not been adopted 
early by the Group. Management anticipates that all of the relevant pronouncements will be adopted in the 
Group's accounting policies for the first period beginning after the effective date of the pronouncement. 
Information on new standards, amendments and interpretations that are expected to be relevant to the 
Group's financial statements is provided below. 

Certain other new standards and interpretations have been issued but are not expected to have a material 
impact on the Group's financial statements. 

AASB 15: Revenue from Contracts with Customers (including AASB 2014-5 Amendments to Australian Accounting 
Standards arising from AASB 15, AASB 2015-8 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Effective Date of 
AASB 15, AASB 2016-7 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Deferral of AASB 15 for Not-for-Profit 
Entities and AASB 2016-3 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Clarifications to AASB 15) 

Effective date for entity: 1 July 2019 

AASB 15 replaces AASB 118 Revenue, AASB 111 Construction Contracts and some revenue-related Interpretations: 
- establishes a new revenue recognition model 
- changes the basis for deciding whether revenue is to be recognised over time or at a point in time 

- provides new and more detailed guidance on specific topics (e.g. multiple element arrangements, variable pricing, 
rights of return, warranties and licensing) 

- expands and improves disclosures about revenue 

Impact: The entity is yet to undertake a detailed assessment of the impact of AASB 15. However, based on the entity's 
preliminary assessment, the Standard is not expected to have a material impact on the transactions and balances 
recognised in the financial statements when it is first adopted for the year ending 30 June 2020. 
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1. Statement of significant accounting policies (continued) 

q. Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards that are not yet effective and have 
not been adopted early by the Group (continued) 

AASB 1058: Income of Not-for-Profit Entities (including AASB 2016-8 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards -
Australian Implementation Guidance for Not-for-Profit Entities) 

Effective date for entity: 1 July 2019 

AASB 1058 clarifies and simplifies the income recognition requirements that apply to not-for-profit (NPF) entities, in 

conjunction with AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers. These standards supersede all the income recognition 
requirements relating to private sector NFP entities, and the majority of income recognition requirements relating to public 

sector NFP entities, previously in AASB 1004 Contributions. 

Under AASB 1058, the timing of income recognition depends on whether a NFP transaction gives rise to a liability or other 
performance obligation, or a contribution by owners, related to an asset received by an entity. 

This standard applies when a NFP entity enters into transactions where the consideration to acquire an asset is 

significantly less than the fair value of the asset principally to enable the entity to further its objectives. In the latter case, 

the entity will recognise and measure the asset at fair value in accordance with the applicable Australian Accounting 

Standard (e.g. AASB 116 Property, Plant and Equipment). 

Upon initial recognition of the asset, AASB 1058 requires the entity to consider whether any other financial statement 
elements (called 'related amounts') should be recognised, such as: 

(a) Contributions by owners; 
(b) Revenue, or a contract liability arising from a contract with a customer; 

(c) A lease liability; 

(d) A financial instrument; or 

(e) A provision. 

These related amounts will be accounted for in accordance with the applicable Australian Accounting Standard. 

Impact: The entity is yet to undertake a detailed assessment of the impact of AASB 1058. However, based on the 

entity's preliminary assessment, the Standard is not expected to have a material impact on the transactions and 

balances recognised in the financial statements when it is first adopted for the year ending 30 June 2020. 

AASB 16: Leases 

Effective date for entity: 1 July 2019 

AASB 16: 
- replaces AASB 117 Leases and some lease-related Interpretations 
- requires all leases to be accounted for 'on-balance sheet' by lessees, other than short-term and low value asset leases 

-A lessee will recognise a liability to make lease payments and an asset for the right to use the underlying asset during 

the lease term 

- Interest expense on the lease liability and depreciation expense on the right-to-use asset will be separately recognised 

- Requirement to remeasure the lease liability upon the occurrence of certain events (i.e. change in lease term) 

- provides new guidance on the application of the definition of lease and on sale and lease back accounting 
- largely retains the existing lessor accounting requirements in AASB 117 

- requires new and different disclosures about leases 
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f, Statement of slgnlffcant accounting policies (continued) 

q. Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards that are not yet effective and have 
not been adopted early by the Group (continued) 

Impact: When this Standard is first adopted for the year ending 30 June 2020, there will be no material impact on the 

transactions and balances recognised in the financial statements. The consolidated group has one minor equipment 
lease (as a lessee), which will be brought onto the statement of financial position, increasing lease 

assets and financial liabilities. The quantum of these adjustments will be based on facts at the date of the initial 

application. 

AASB 2017-6: Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation 

Effective date for entity: 1 July 2019 

AASB 2017-6 amends AASB 9 Financial Instruments (2014) to permit entities to measure at amortised cost or fair value 

through other comprehensive income particular financial assets that would otherwise have contractual cash flows that are 

solely payments of principal and interest but do not meet that condition only as a result of a prepayment feature. This is 

subject to meeting other conditions, such as the nature of the business model relevant to the financial asset. Otherwise, 

the financial assets would be measured at fair value through profit or loss. 

Impact: When these amendments are first adopted for the year ending 30 June 2020, there will be no material impact on 

the financial statements. 

AASB 2018-2: Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement 

Effective date for entity: 1 July 2019 

AASB 2018-2 amends AASB 119 Employee Benefits to specify how an entity accounts for defined benefit plans when a 

plan amendment, curtailment or settlement occurs during a reporting period. The amendments require an entity to use 

the assumptions used for the remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability or asset to determine the current service 

cost and the net interest for the remainder of the reporting period after a plan event occurs. This Standard also clarifies 

that, when a plan event occurs, an entity recognises the past service cost or a gain or loss on settlement separately from 

its assessment of the asset ceiling. 

Impact: When these amendments are first adopted for the year ending 30 June 2020, there will be no material impact on 

the financial statements. 

AASB 2017-7: Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures 

Effective date for entity: 1 July 2019 

AASB 2017-7 amends AASB 128 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures to clarify that an entity is required to 

account for long-term interests in an associate or joint venture, which in substance form part of the net investment in the 

associate or joint venture but to which the equity method is not applied, using AASB 9 Financial Instruments before 

applying the loss allocation and impairment requirements in AASB 128. 

Impact: When these amendments are first adopted for the year ending 30 June 2020, there will be no material impact on 

the financial statements. 
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Th• Pharmacy au/Id of Auatr•II• (Queenaland Br■nch) 
and lb control- .,.tltlu 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
for the year ended 30 June 2019 

1. Statement of significant accounting policies (continued) 

q. Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards that are not yet effective and have 
not been adopted early by the Group (continued) 

AASB 2018-1: Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2015-2017 Cycle 

Effective date for entity: 1 July 2019 

AASB 2018-1 makes e number of relatively minor amendments to AASB 3 Business Combinations, AASB 111 Joint 
Arrangements, AASB 112 Income Taxes and AASB 123 Borrowing Costs. 

Impact: When these amendments are first adopted for the year ending 30 June 2020, there will be no material impact on 
the financial statements. 

r, New and revised Standards that are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2018 

No accounting standard has been adopted earlier than the application date stated in the standard. 
The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year except for the following 
standards, which have been adopted for the first time this financial year: 

AASB 9: Financial Instruments (including AASB 2014-7 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from 
AASB 9 (December 2014)) 

(a) Initial application 
AASB 9 Financial Instruments (AASB 9) replaces AASB 139 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement (AASB 
139) for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018, bringing together all three aspects of the accounting for 
financial instruments: classification end measurement; impairment; and hedge accounting. 

The entity has applied AASB 9 retrospectively, with an initial application date of 1 July 2018. The entity has not restated 
the comparative information, which continues to be reported under AASB 139. There were no material differences 
arising from the adoption of AASB 9 and no adjustment has been recognised directly in opening retained earnings or 
other components of equity as at 1 July 2018. 

(I) Classification and measurement 
Under AASB 9, debt instruments are subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss, amortised cost, or fair 
value through OCI. The classification is based on two criteria: the entity"s business model for managing the assets; and 
whether the instruments' contractual cash flows represent 'solely payments of principal and interest' on the principal 
amount outstanding. 

The assessment of the entity's business model was made as of the date of initial application, 1 July 2018. The assessment 
of whether contractual cash flows on debt instruments are solely comprised of principal and interest was made based on 
the facts and circumstances as at the initial recognition of the assets. 

The classification and measurement requirements of AASB 9 did not have a significant impact to the entity. 

- Trade and other receivables previously classified as loans and receivables are held to collect contractual cash flows and 
give rise to cash flows representing solely payments of principal and interest. These are now classified and measured as 
debt instruments at amortised cost. 

- Debt instruments previously classified as held-to-maturity (HTM) financial assets are now classified and 
measured as debt instruments at amortised cost as they pass the SPPI test. 
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and lu controlled enfltlu 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
for the year ended 30 June 2019 

f. Statement of •lgnlncant accounting policies (continued) 

r. New and revised Standards that are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2018 

(continued) 

- Equity investments in non-listed subsidiaries previously classified as AFS financial assets are now classified and 
measured as equity instruments designated at fair value through profit and loss. The principal investment of the wholly 
owned subsidiary are land and buildings. The land and buildings were independently valued on 30 June 2017 and the 
investment in the trust reflects the updated valuation. The Branch Committee have reviewed market conditions and 
determined the market value is consistent with! the 2017 valuation. An independent valuation will be sought periodically 
to support this assessment. Therefore, although the measurement basis changed on transition to AASB 9, there has 
been no financial impact associated with this change. The investment is eliminated on consolidation. 

There are no changes in dassification and measurement for the entity's financial liabilities. 

In summary, upon adoption of AASB 9, the entity applied the following required or elected reclassifications: 

1 July 2018 

Consolidated Entity 
AASB 139 measurement category 
Held-to-maturity Investments 
FIIG investment portfolio 
Available for sale 
Units in controlled unit trust 

1 July 2018 

Parent Entity 
AASB 139 measurement category 
Held-to-maturity Investments 
FIIG investment portfolio 
Available for sale 
Units in controlled unit trust 

(ii) Impairment loss 

AASB 9 measurement category 
Fair value Fair value 

through profit Amortised through 
or loss cost OCI 

$ $ $ 

492,223 

492223 

AASB 9 measurement category 
Fair value Fair value 

through profit Amortised through 
or loss cost OCI 

$ $ $ 

492,223 

4,167 301 
4,167,301 492.ff23 

The adoption of AASB 9 has fundamentally changed the entity's accounting for impairment losses for financial assets by 
replacing AASB 139's incurred loss approach with a forward-looking estimated credit losses (ECL) approach. AASB 9 
requires the entity to recognise an allowance for ECLs for all debt instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss 
and contract assets, i.e. those held at amortised cost and at FVTOCI. 

Upon adoption of AASB 9 there was no material impact on the impairment on the trade and other receivables which 
resulted in no adjustment to retained earnings as at 1 July 2018. 
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Th• l'h■rm■cy 0111/d of Au■tr■II• (Qu-n■l■nd Branch) 

■nd It■ controlled entltl•• 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
for the year ended 30 June 2019 

f. Statement of significant accounting policies (continued) 

r. New and revised Standards that are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2018 
(continued) 

Interpretation 22: Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration 

Interpretation 22 looks at what exchange rate to use for translation when payments are made or received in advance of 

the related asset, expense or income. 

Although AASB 121 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates sets out requirements about which exchange rate 
to use when recording a foreign currency transaction on initial recognition in an entity's functional currency, the IFRS 

Interpretations Committee had observed diversity in practice in circumstances in which an entity recognises a 
non-monetary liability arising from advance consideration. The diversity resulted from the fact that some entities were 

recognising revenue using the spot exchange rate at the date of the receipt of the advance consideration while others 
were using the spot exchange rate at the date that revenue was recognised. 

Interpretation 22 addresses this issue by clarifying that the date of the transaction for the purpose of determining the 

exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related asset, expense or income (or part of ii) is the date on which an 
entity initially recognises the non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from the payment or receipt of advance 

consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts in advance, the entity shall determine a date of the transaction 
for each payment or receipt of advance consideration. 

Impact: No material impact on the financial statements. 

2. Section 272 Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009 

In accordance with the requirements of the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009, the attention of 
members is drawn to the provisions of subsections (1) to (3) of section 272, which reads as follows: 

Information to be provided to members or Commissioner: 

(1) A Member of a reporting unit, or the Commissioner, may apply to the reporting unit for specified prescribed 
information in relation to the reporting unit to be made available to the person making the application. 

(2) The application must be in writing and must specify the period within which, and the manner in which, the 
information is to be made available. The period must not be less than 14 days after the application is given to 
the reporting unit. 

(3) A reporting unit must comply with an application made under subsection (1 ). 
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and /fa controlled ent/1/ea 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
for the year ended 30 June 2019 

3. Revenue 
Notes 

Membership subscriptions 
Membership subscriptions - Fighting Fund 
Commissions received 
Distributions received 3a 
Event and conference income 
Interest revenue 3b 
Program funding 
- National Secretariat program funding 
- Queensland government program funding 
- Other program funding 
Sale of goods 
Other sales revenue 
Rent revenue 
Training course fees 
Total revenue 

a. Distributions revenue from: 
- controlled entity: 
The Guild Properties (Queensland) Unit Trust 
Total distribution revenue 

b. Interest revenue from: 
- external parties 
- controlled entity 
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Consolidated Entity Parent Entity 
2019 2018 2019 2018 

$ $ $ $ 

1,721,868 1,782,588 1,721,858 1,782,568 
31D,SDD 313,875 31D,&DD 313,875 

1,831 666 1,831 666 
524,385 546,004 

5,799,943 5,667,024 5,798,943 5,867,024 
181,774 133,130 181,774 133,130 

925,578 925,578 925,578 925,578 
1,014,237 482,658 1,014,237 482,656 

35,706 35,706 
38,134 31 ,109 39,134 31,109 
48,185 27,106 46,195 27,106 

140,828 114,470 13,328 51,970 
1,417,068 1,258,827 1,417,088 1,258,827 

11,801,740 101972,715 12,005,82li 11,458,219 

524,316 548,004 
124,386 548,004 

191,774 133,130 191,774 133,130 

191.774 133,130 1911774 133,130 



TIie l'flennacy Guild af Jl.11stralle (0,,.•n•l•nd ,,,.nc:IIJ 
and Its cantralled entltlu 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
for the year ended 30 June 2019 

4. l'rant for the Year 
Notes 

Total comprehensive income has been determined after: 

a. Other expenses: 
Advertising and promotions expenses 
Bank and card charges 
Branch committee expenses 
Cleaning expenses 
Computer costs 
Conference and seminar attendance expenses 
Consultancy expenses - other 
Contract staff 
Dispatch expenses 
Donations (i) 
Events expenses: 
• Catering and dinner 
• Commissions paid 
• Consultancy expenses 
- Display and venue expenses 
- Printing and stationery 
• Speaker costs 
- Technical expenses 

Insurance expenses 
Investment management fees 
Legal - other legal costs 
Meals expenses 
Motor vehicle expenses 
Capitation fees 22b 
Capitation fees - Fighting Fund 22b 
Net loss I (gain) on disposal of fixed assets 
Printing and stationery - other 
Power and light 
Professional fees, including audit 
Purchases - merchandise 
Queensland Health Project bin contractor 
Rates 
Rent 
Repairs and maintenance 
Security expenses 
Sponsorship 
Staff procurement 
Subscriptions 
Telephone and internet expenses 
Travelling and fares expenses 
Sundry expenses 
Total other expenses 

i) Donations 
Total $1,000 or less paid 
Total exceeding $1,000 paid 
Less donations reimbursed 
Add donation recognised as prepayment in prior year 
Less donation for future event recognised as prepayment 

Total donations 
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Consolidated Entity 
2019 2018 

$ $ 

153,050 156,311 
41,253 50,281 
80,119 51,444 
54,954 56,081 
87,733 81,457 
16,881 17,712 

298,189 216,728 
21,395 1,211 
32,897 58,053 

120,357 25,959 

1,398,864 1,433,556 
42,291 3,693 

155,766 150,000 
1,000,092 529,264 

71,085 71,405 
174,815 158,587 
370,751 359,420 

92,829 91,361 
2,157 151 

39,588 48,145 
84,728 49,424 
32,823 31,388 

502,442 524,628 
310,500 313,875 

2,381 (7,984) 
65,447 69,399 
46,806 49,318 
40,694 41,222 

3,531 7,160 
128,617 112,814 

34,388 34,144 
32,654 2,658 
14,766 14,753 
40,916 41,493 
20,500 28,500 
13,465 4,460 
35,493 34,378 
46,793 49,389 

342,032 237,431 
367,585 327,116 

il;lt!J,ffl s:.~!.9! 

2,281 695 
118,676 32,764 

(2,000) 
7,500 

(~) 12D 
(7,500) 
25,1511 

Parent Entity 
2019 2018 

$ $ 

153,050 156,311 
41,183 50,281 
80,119 51,444 
54,964 56.081 
97,733 81,457 
15,881 17.712 

288,188 216,728 
21,396 1.211 
32,887 58,053 

120,367 25,959 

1,388,884 1,433,556 
42,281 3,693 

155,766 150,000 
886,737 529,264 

71,085 71,405 
174,815 158,587 
370,751 359,420 

91,788 87,201 
2,157 151 

34,631 44,186 
84,728 49,424 
32,823 31,388 

502,442 524,628 
310,500 313,875 

2,381 (7,984) 
65,447 69,399 
46,806 49,318 
36,544 37,122 

3,531 7,160 
128,617 112,814 

527,429 571,808 
14,766 14,753 
40,816 41,493 
20,500 28,500 
13,485 4,460 
35,493 34,378 
48,793 49,389 

342,032 237,431 
328,148 289,833 

1,111?,m um.BO 

2,281 695 
118,576 32,764 

(2,000) 
7,500 

:1;,0001 (7,500) 
1 ,Hf 25,859 



Th■ l'h■rm■cy Gulld of Au■tr■II■ (Queen■l■nd Br■nch} 

and lu conlnllad _,,,_ 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
for the year ended 30 June 2019 

4, Profit for the Year (continued} 

Allowance for expected credit losses • trade receivables 

Net loss / (gain) on disposal of: 
- property, plant and equipment 

Defined contribution plan: 
• superannuation expense 

Expenses incurred in connection with holding meetings as 
required under the rules of the Branch 

b. Employee benefits expense 

Amounts paid to Office Holders 
• wages and salaries 
• superannuation 
• leave and other entitlements 
• separation and redundancies 
- payroll tax 
• other employee expenses 

Amounts paid to all other employees 
• wages and salaries 
- superannuation 
• leave and other entitlements 
- separation and redundancies 
• payroll tax 
- other employee expenses 

Total employee benefits expense 

c. Depreciation and amortisation expense 

Depreciation expense 
Amortisation expense 

d. Impairment expense 

Impairment expense / (reversal) 

Notes Consolidated Entity 
2019 2018 

$ $ 

(7,984) 

371,517 320,504 

80,106 50,222 

130,885 134,028 
13,090 13,158 
13,701 9,697 

7,489 7,452 

181,145 184,335 

3,175,485 2,883,295 
358,427 307,346 
361,432 324,984 

13,021 
183,858 168,127 

67,154 ◄6,857 
4,145,118 3,743,830 

4,311,301 a,907,985 

241,297 252,854 
37,238 37,237 

211,hil 290,091 

4,035 
4,o'Ji 

Parent Ent ity 
2019 

$ 

2,381 

371,517 

80,108 

130,865 
13,090 
13,701 

7,489 

1U,146 

3,175,485 
358,427 
361,432 

183,658 
67,154 

4,1"'6,158 

4,311,301 

115,120 
37,238 

1112,358 

i) The prior year impairment loss reflects a decrease in the capital value of the held-to-maturity investment portfolio. 

e. Finance costs 
Finance costs: 
- external interest 
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2018 
$ 

(7,984) 

320,504 

50,222 

134,028 
13,158 
9,697 

7,452 

184,335 

2,883,295 
307,346 
324,984 

13,021 
168,127 
45,867 

3,743,630 

3,907,965 

126,968 
37~7 

iU,zbS 

4,035 
4.oD 



TII• ,.,,.,,._If Guild of Aust,..11• (Ou•-•l•nd .,..nc#IJ 

•nd Its controllad _,,,, .. 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
for the year ended 30 June 2019 

5. Income faJC expen•e 

a. The components of tax expense comprise: 

Current tax 
Deferred tax 
Under/ (Over) provision in prior year 
Losses not brought to accounts 

b. The prima facie tax on profit before income 
tax is reconciled to the income tax expenses as 
follows: 

Prima facie tax payable on profit from ordinary 
activities before income tax at 30% (2018: 30%) 

Add: 
Tax effect of: 
- non-deductible expenses 

Less: 
Tax effect of: 

- exempt income and expenses 
- over I (under) provision in prior year 
- losses not brought to account 

Income tax expense attributable to entity 

The applicable weighted average effective tax 
rates are as follows: 

Notes 

6. Key management per•onnel compensation 

Consolidated Entity 
2019 2018 

$ $ 

182,543 373,272 

182,543 373,272 

0.00% 0.00% 

Parent Entity 
2019 

$ 

220,396 

220,388 

0.00% 

Remuneration paid to key management personnel includes salary, contributions to members' superannuation and 
other benefits paid to them and on their behalf. Expenditure is included in the total employee benefits expense line item. 

The key management personnel compensation includes the following expenses: 

Notes Consolidated Entity Parent Entity 
2019 2018 2019 

$ $ $ 

Short-term employee benefits 377,841 344,976 377,8"41 
Post-employment benefits 35,568 37,343 35,568 
Other long-term benefits 49,937 

413:«ii d2,2Bi 4;3,409 

7. Auditors• remuneration 
Notes Consolidated Entity Parent Entity 

2019 2018 2019 
$ $ $ 

Remuneration of auditor of the parent entity for: 
- auditing of the financial report and grant acquittals 32,280 31,620 30,330 
- preparation of the financial report 4,700 4,600 "4,700 
- taxation services 3,700 5,000 1,500 

40,810 41.220 36,UO 
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2018 
$ 

411,038 

411,038 

0.00% 

2018 
$ 

344,976 
37,343 
49,837 

-432,2~ 

2018 
$ 

29,720 
4,600 
2,800 

37,120 



Th■ l'h■rm■cy Ou/Id of Au■tr■/1■ (Queen■l■nd Branch) 

■nd It• controll■d ■ntltl■• 

N ates to the Financial Statements 
for the year ended 30 June 2019 

,. Cash and cash equlvalanta 
Notes 

Cash at bank and on hand 

Reconciliation of cash 

Cash at the end of the financial year as shown 
in the Statement of Cash Flows is reconciled to 
items in the Statement of Financial Position as 
follows: 

Cash at bank 
Short term investments 
Total cash and cash equivalents 20d 

9. Trade and other receivables 
Notes 

Current 
Trade receivables 

Accrued revenue 
Sundry debtors 

Amounts receivable from related parties: 
- Other reporting unit 

Pharmacy Guild of Australia 
GuildLink Pty Lid 
Guild Trustee Services Pty Ltd 

Gold Cross Products and Services Pty Ltd 
Guild Group Holdings Ltd 
Pharmacy Guild of Australia - NSW Branch 

- Controlled entities 
The Guild Properties (Queensland) Unit Trust 

Less allowance for expected credit losses 

a. Allowance for expected credit losses 

Consolidated Entity 

2019 2018 
s $ 

4,8331228 5,872,227 
41833,228 5,872,227 

4,833,226 5,872,227 

4,833,228 5,872,227 

Consolidated Entity 
2019 2018 

$ $ 

212711™ \611,848 
2,2711384 1,811,848 

68,134 188,584 
107,916 

12,301 14,562 
2,750 18,000 

11,000 

1,990 3,985 
324 449 

75,4911 342,496 

2,348,883 1,954,444 

Parent Entity 
2019 2018 

s $ 

4,730,144 5,807,120 
~730,144 5,807,620 

4,730,144 5,807,620 

4I73DI144 5,807,620 

Parent Entity 
2019 2018 

$ $ 

!t2711384 1.8111848 
!t2711384 1.611,848 

58,134 186,584 
107,918 

12,301 14,562 
2,750 18,000 

11,000 

1,990 3,985 

324 449 

707,444 662,928 

7!!zMS 1,IXIS,424 

3,0541307 2,617,372 

Current trade receivables are non-interest bearing loans and generally on 30 days from end of month terms. Under AASB 139 a 
provision for impairment was recognised when there was objective evidence that an individual trade receivable was impaired. 
Under AASB 9 a loss allowance is recognised for the expected lifetime credit losses based on historical credit loss experience, 
adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors. In the 2019 financial year there has been no impainment write downs 
in relation to receivables (2018: Nil). 
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N ates to the Financial Statements 
for the year ended 30 June 2019 

9. Trade and other receivables (continued) 

Credit risk 

The group has no significant concentration of credit risk with respect to any single counter party or group. The main 
source of credit risk to the group is considered to be the class of assets described as "trade and other receivables". 

The following table details the group's trade and other receivables exposed to credit risk (prior to collateral and other 
credit enhancements) with ageing analysis and impairment provided for thereon. Amounts are considered as 'past due' 
when the debt has not been settled, within the terms and conditions agreed between the group and the customer or 
counter party to the transaction. Receivables that are past due are assessed for impairment by ascertaining solvency of 
the debtors and are provided for where there are specific circumstances indicating that the debt may not be fully repaid 
to the group. 

The balances of receivables that remain within the initial trade terms (as detailed in the table) are considered to be of 
high credit quality. 

Notes Consolidated Entity Parent Entity 
2019 2018 2019 

$ $ $ 

Trade receivables 
Within initial trade terms 2,137,788 1,529,459 2,137,788 
Past due receivables (but not impaired): 
Overdue 1 - 29 days 103,996 1,940 103,996 
Overdue 30 - 59 days 29,580 80,091 29,580 
Overdue > 60 days 458 
Gross amount 2!!?1,384 1,811,tMl! 2,2111114 

Other receivables 
Within initial trade terms 71,499 334,821 599,884 
Past due receivables (but not impaired): 
Overdue 1 - 29 days 11,205 
Overdue 30 - 59 days 450 11,481 
Overdue> 60 days 7,225 1809383 

761411 342.496 782,943 

Neither the group nor parent entity holds financial assets with terms that have been renegotiated, but which would 
otherwise be past due or impaired. 

The expected credit loss rate for each ageing category is 0% (2018: 0%) and consequently the lifetime expected credit losses 
are nil (2018: nil). 

b, Financial assets classified as loans and receivables 

Trade and other receivables 

Total current 
Total non-current 

Financial assets 

10. Other assets 

20 

Notes 

Current 
Prepayments - expense 
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2,348,863 1,954,444 3,054,307 

2,348,813 1,954,444 3,054,307 

Consolidated Entity Parent Entity 
2019 2018 2019 

$ $ $ 

t,3181811 1,103,229 1.278.042 
1,318,811 1,103,229 1,278,042 

2018 
$ 

1,529,459 

1,940 
80,091 

458 
1,8111948 

864,301 

21,038 

120,085 
1,005,424 

2,617,372 

2,617.372 

2018 
$ 

1,103,229 
1.103.229 
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11, Other nnanclal •••et• 

Non-Current 

Available-for-sale financial assets 
Units in controlled unit trust 

Notes Consolidated Entity 
2019 2018 

$ $ 

Parent Entity 
2019 

$ 
2018 

$ 

- The Guild Properties (Queensland) Unit Trust (i) 4,167,301 

Held-to-maturity financial assets 
FIIG investment portfolio 

Financial assets at amortised cost 
FIIG investment portfolio 

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 
Units in controlled unit trust 
- The Guild Properties (Queensland) Unit Trust 

(ii) 

(iv) 

492,223 492,223 

2,386,374 2,386,374 

(iii) 

20 2,388,374 492,223 

4,171,690 

6,558,084 4,659,524 

(i) Available-for-sale financial assets under AASB 139 comprised of investments in the unit shares of the Unit Trust measured 
at cost less impairment. There were no fixed returns or fixed maturity date attached to these investments. No intention to dispose 
of any unlisted available-for-sale financial assets existed at 30 June 2018. 

(ii) Held-to-maturity investments under AASB 139 comprised fixed coupon bonds and floating rate notes held by investment 
custodian, FIIG Securities Limited and were measured at amortised cost. Floating rates were between BBSW + 2.10% and BBSW + 
8.5% and fixed rates were between 3. 78% and 8.75%. Maturity dates ranged between 2019 and 2042. 

Under AASB 9, financial instruments classification is based on two criteria: the entity's business 'model for managing the assets; 
and whether the instruments' contractual cash flows represent 'solely payments of principal and Interest' on the principal 
amount outstanding. Upon transition to AASB 9 effective 1 July 2019, other financial assets have been reclassified as set out below. 

(iii) Investments in the unit shares of the Unit Trust previously classified as available-for-sale financial assets are now classified 
as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss as they fail the SPPI test. There are no fixed returns or fixed maturity date 
attached to this investment. No intention to dispose of any units in the Trust existed at 30 June 2019. 

(iv) FIIG investments previously classified as held-to-maturity financial assets are now classified as financial assets at amortised 
cost as they pass the SPPI test. Floating rates are between BBSW + 2.10% and BBSW + 6.5% and fixed rates are between 
3.78% and 8.75%. Maturity dates range between 2020 and 2051. 

12, Controlled entitles and related parties 

Parent Entity: 

The Pharmacy Guild of Australia (Queensland 
Branch) 

Subsidiaries of Parent Entity: 

Country of 
Incorporation 

Australia 

Percentage Owned (%) 

2019 2018 

The Guild Properties (Queensland) Unit Trust 
and its trustee Guildprop Pty Ltd Australia 100% 100% 
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12, Controlled entitles and related parties (continued) 

Other Reporting Units: 

The Pharmacy Guild of Australia Australia 

Pharmacy Guild (Queensland Branch) ia a branch of The Pharmacy Guild of Australia. The central office and each of the branches 
(listed below) are reporting units and considered related parties. 

Other branches of The Pharmacy Guild of Australia 
Pharmacy Guild of Australia -Australian Capital Territory (ACT) 
Branch 
Pharmacy Guild of Australia - New South Wales (NSW) Branch 
Pharmacy Guild of Australia - Northern Territory (NT) Branch 
Pharmacy Guild of Australia - South Australia (SA) Branch 
Pharmacy Guild of Australia - Tasmania Branch 
Pharmacy Guild of Australia - Victoria Branch 
Pharmacy Guild of Australia - Western Australia (WA) Branch 

Australia 

Australia 
Australia 
Australia 
Australia 
Australia 
Australia 

Other Related Parties (being entities associated with The Pharmacy Guild of Australia and Its branches): 

Fred IT Group 
Gold Cross Products and Services Pty Ltd 
Guild Group Holdings Ltd 
Guild Insurance Ltd 
GuildLink Ply Ltd 
Guild Superannuation Services Ltd 
Guild Trustee Services Pty Ltd 
Meridian Lawyers Limited 

13. Property, plant and equipment 

Non-Current 

Freehold land - at cost 

Buildings - at cost 
leas: Accumulated depreciation 
less: Provision for impairment 

Buildings under construction - at cost 

Total land and buildings 

Plant and equipment - at cost 
less: Accumulated depreciation 

Total property, plant and equipment 

Notes 

Australia 
Australia 
Australia 
Australia 
Australia 
Australia 
Australia 
Australia 

Consolidated Entity Parent Entity 
2018 2018 2018 

$ $ $ 

940,000 940,000 

5,383,221 5,388,832 
(1,223,184) (1,096,967) 
(1,190,'la!} j1 I 190,'3()~ 
2,111,121 31101,415 

838775 839775 

4 759 402 4,041,415 838 775 

1,113,693 1,088,974 1,113,883 

1!~7341 (836,768) 1!~734) 
3881158 462,216 3881819 

5,128,361 4,493,631 1,208,734 

Provision for impairment represents the difference in the carrying value of land and buildings and the independent valuation 
performed by Herron Todd White as at 30 June 2017, using the capitalisation approach for valuation. 
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2018 
$ 

1,088,974 
1636,7581 
462,218 

452.216 
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f3. Property, plant and equipment (continued) 

Movements in carrying amounts 
Movements in the carrying amounts for each class of property, plant and equipment between the beginning and end 
of the current financial year: 

Consolidated entity: 
30 June 2019 

Balance at the beginning of the year 
Additions 
Transfers 
Disposals 
Impairment (expense)/ reversal 
Depreciation expense 
Carrying amount at the end of the year 

30 June 2018 

Balance at the beginning of the year 
Additions 
Transfers 
Disposals 
Impairment (expense)/ reversal 
Depreciation expense 
Carrying amount at the end of the year 

f4. Intangible assets 

Non-Current 

Work in progress 

Acquired software, at cost 
less: Accumulated amortisation 
Total intangible assets 

Movements in carrying amounts of intangible assets 

Balance at the beginning of year 
Additions during the period 
Transfers 
Disposal of intangible assets 
Amortisation expense 
Closing carrying value at 30 June 

Freehold 
Land 

940,000 

!!!1,000 

Freehold 
Land 

940,000 

940.000 

Notes 

Plant and 
Buildings Equipment 

3,101,415 452,216 
4,389 51,959 

{17,715) 
{2,381) 

,12&11zn ,11s11~ 
!,979,827 3881919 

Plant and 
Buildings Equipment 

3,220,000 424,042 
7,301 193,519 

(38,377) 

,12s1aas1 ,126,9681 
3.101,415 452.218 

Consolidated Entity 
2019 

$ 

148,861 
(132,123) 

54,066 

137,238I 
16,128 

2018 
$ 

148,951 
(94,886) 
541086 

91,303 

Building under 
Construction 

822,060 
17,715 

lll1ZZI 
Building under 

Construction 

Parent EnUty 
2019 

$ 

148,951 
(112.123) 

11.828 

54,066 

Amortisation on acquired software intangible assets is included in the depreciation and amortisation expense recorded in the 
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. The remaining useful life of the acquired software ranges from 
5 months to 1 O months. 
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Total 

4,493,631 
878,408 

(2,381) 

!24112!!) 
lij28,381 

Total 

4,584,042 
200,820 

(38,377) 

!262,1&41 
4.493.831 

2018 
$ 

148,951 
(94,885) 
54.086 

91,303 
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f5, Trad• and other payables 
Notes 

Current 
Unsecured liabllltles 
Trade payables 
Sundry payables 
Accrued expenses 
Income in advance - member subscriptions 
Income in advance - events 
Income in advance - unexpended funds/grant 
Income in advance - other 
Other related parties - Gold Cross 
Consideration to employers for payroll deductions 
Legal costs payable 

Other legal matters 
Other legal matters - owing to related parties: Meridian Lawyer! 

Amounts owing to: 
- Other reporting units 

Pharmacy Guild of Australia 
Pharmacy Guild of Australia - SA Branch 
Pharmacy Guild of Australia - Victoria Branch 
Pharmacy Guild of Australia - NSW Branch 
Pharmacy Guild of Australia - Tasmania Branch 
Pharmacy Guild of Australia - WA Branch 
Pharmacy Guild of Australia - ACT Branch 
Guild Insurance Ltd 

- Controlled entities 
lnnovationRX International Pty Ltd 
The Guild Properties (Queensland) Unit Trust 

a. Financial llabllltles at amortised coat 
classlfied as trade and other payables 

Trade and other payables - ail current 

Financial liabilities as trade and other 
payables 20 
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Consolidated Entity Parent Entity 
2019 2018 2019 2018 

$ $ $ $ 

614,090 450,040 614,090 450,040 
288,732 238,834 273,227 224,248 
427,840 156,990 423,490 155,090 

2,140,937 2,152,541 2,140,937 2,152,541 
1,296,759 501,278 1,298,759 501,279 

87,218 69,166 87,218 69,166 
301,433 263,083 301,433 251,625 

21,484 994 21,484 994 
2,073 2,073 

18,828 31,225 18,828 31,225 
1,739 1,739 
2,897 2,897 
2,520 2,520 

60 60 
390 390 

15 15 
45,837 45,837 

513,2411 628,065 
5,243,113~ U'i'1l1'i'3 61808,824 4,4681* 

5,243,031 3,871,573 5,B0!J824 4,468,894 

51243,031 3,871,573 e1eoe1s24 4,469,894 
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16. Employee Provisions 
Notes 

Office Holders 
Annual leave 
Long service leave 
Separations and redundancies 
Other 
Subtotal office holders 

Employees other than office holders 
Annual leave 
Long service leave 
Separations and redundancies 
Other 
Subtotal employees other than office holders 
Total employee provisions 

Current 
Non-current 
Total employee provisions 

Provision for employee benefits 

Consolidated Entity Parent Entity 
2019 2018 2019 2018 

$ $ $ $ 

8,977 4,479 8,977 4,479 
1,028 249 1,028 249 

10,003 4,728 10,003 4,728 

224,826 202,893 224,826 202,893 
348,175 298,875 348,175 296,675 

573,001 499,588 573,001 499,668 
1831004 61296 &83,004 504,298 

438,800 395,224 436,800 395,224 
144,!04 109,072 1441204 109,072 
ii:s1oii4 ?lii41~86 &831004 1l041296 

A provision has been recognised for employee entitlements relating to annual and long service leave. In calculating the present value of 
future cash flows in respect of long service leave, the probability of long service leave being taken is based on historical data. The 
measurement and recognition criteria relating to employee benefits has been included in Note 1 to this report. 

17. Segmentel reporting 

The Queensland Branch of the Pharmacy Guild of Australia provides services to pharmacists predominantly in 
Queensland. 

18. Capital commitment• 

Capital expenditure commitments contracted for: 

Building under construction 

Payable: 
Within 12 months 
Greater than 12 months and less than five years 
Longer than 5 years 

Notes Consolidated Entity 
2019 

$ 

771191 

776,198 

778198 
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Parent Entity 
2018 2019 

$ $ 

n1,1aa 

776,198 

778198 

2018 
$ 
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19. Cash flow Information 
Notes 

a. Reconciliation of cash flow from operating 
activities with profit after income tax 
Profit after income tax 
Non-cash flows in profit: 
• Depreciation and amortisation expense 
- Impairment expense / (reversal) 
- (Profit) / loss on disposal of property, 
plant and equipment and intangibles 
• Net payable settled by return of units in the Guild 
Properties (Queensland) Unit Trust 

Change in assets and liabilities: 
• (lncrease)/decrease in trade and other receivables 
• (lncrease)/decrease in other assets 
• lncrease/(decrease) in trade and other payables 
- lncrease/(decrease) in provisions 
Cash flows from operations 

b. Related party operating cash flows 

i) Cash inflows 

The Pharmacy Guild of Australia 
Pharmacy Guild of Australia - ACT Branch 
Pharmacy Guild of Australia - NSW Branch 
Pharmacy Guild of Australia - NT Branch 
Pharmacy Guild of Australia - SA Branch 
Pharmacy Guild of Australia - Tasmania Branch 
Pharmacy Guild of Australia - Victoria Branch 
Pharmacy Guild of Australia - WA Branch 
Fred IT Group 
Gold Cross Products and Services Pty Ltd 
Guild Group Holdings Ltd 
Guild Insurance Ltd 
Guildlink Ply Ltd 
Guild Superannuation Services Ltd 
Guild Trustee Services Pty Ltd 
Meridian Lawyers Limited 
The Guild Properties (Queensland) Unit Trust 

ii) Cash outflows 

The Pharmacy Guild of Australia 
Pharmacy Guild of Australia - ACT Branch 
Pharmacy Guild of Australia - NSW Branch 
Pharmacy Guild of Australia - NT Branch 
Pharmacy Guild of Australia - SA Branch 
Pharmacy Guild of Australia• Tasmania Branch 
Pharmacy Guild of Australia - Victoria Branch 
Pharmacy Guild of Australia - WA Branch 
Gold Cross Products and Services Pty Ltd 
Guild Insurance Ltd 
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Consolidated Entity 
2019 2018 

s $ 

608,477 1,244,239 

278,535 290,091 
4,035 

2,381 (7,984) 

(392,419) 132,258 
(213,582) (199,147) 

1,371,468 (908,985) 
781708 18,912 

117331558 571,419 

1,164,508 1,108,984 
118 884 

8,587 7,998 
350 1,222 

8,885 5,866 
2,270 492 

515 100 
877 225 

102,832 75,316 
93,449 138,114 

2,983 142,454 
101,218 7,473 

31,018 62,827 
400 18,673 

23,341 22,100 
11,898 15,136 

11540,828 11607,1164 

(989,629) (1,049,479) 
(3,290) (4,084) 

(83,895) (17,973) 
(3,975) (2,298) 
(6,782) (2,588) 
(4,403) (4,940) 
(9,748) (7,788) 
(3,071) (3,214) 

(723) 

(13.881! (50,8801 
j1,0l8,H!] (1,143,344} 

Parent Entity 
2019 2018 

$ $ 

734,864 1,370,125 

152,358 164,205 
4,035 

2,381 (7,984) 

1,705,720 

(436,935) 568,038 
(174,813) (199,147) 

1,338,730 (3, 115,092) 
1ai701 16,912 

1,1911013 506,812 

1,154,508 1,108,984 
118 884 

8,587 7,998 
350 1,222 

6,88& 5,668 
2,270 492 

515 100 
677 225 

102,832 75,316 
93,449 138,114 

2,983 142,454 
101,218 7,473 

31,018 62,827 
400 18,673 

23,341 22,100 
11,1198 15,136 
38883 

1,ffl,892 1.607,864 

(989,629) (1,049,479) 
(3,290) (4,084) 

(83,895) (17,973) 
(3,976) (2,296) 
(6,782) (2,588) 
(4,403) (4,940) 
(9,748) (7,788) 
(3,071) (3,214) 

(723) 

1u11111 !50,98D} 
,1,098,9971 ,1.1~.344l 
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20. Financial risk management 

The group's financial instruments consist mainly of deposits with banks, a portfolio of fixed interest investments, trade and other 
receivables and payables, including amounts owing to and receivable from subsidiaries. 

The totals for each category of financial instruments, measured in accordance with AASB 9 (2018: AASB 139) as described in the 
accounting policies to these financial statements, are as follows: 

Financial Assets 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Loans and receivables 
FIIG investment portfolio 
Units in controlled unit trust 

Notes 

8 
9 

11 
11 

Consolidated Entity 
2019 2018 

$ $ 

4,833,226 5,872,227 
2,348,863 1,954,444 
2,386,374 492,223 

Parent Entity 
2019 

$ 

4,730,1-4-4 
3,054,307 
2,388,374 
4,171,190 

201B 
$ 

5,807,620 
2,617,372 

492,223 
4,167,301 

8,581,"63 8,318,894 14,342,511 13,084,516 

Financial Liabilities 
Financial liabilities at amortised cost: 
Trade and other payables 15 S,243,031 3,871.573 5,808,624 

5,243,031 3,871,573 5,808,124 

Financial risk management policies 

The finance committee's overall risk management strategy seeks to assist the group in meeting its financial targets, whilst 
minimising potential adverse effects on financial performance. Risk management policies are approved and reviewed by 
the committee of management on a regular basis. These include the credit risk policies and future cash flow 
requirements. 

The main purpose of non-derivative financial instruments is to raise finance for group operations. The group does 
not have any derivative instruments at 30 June 2019 (2018: nil). 

The finance committee, consisting of senior executives of the group, meets on a regular basis to analyse financial risk 
exposure and to evaluate treasury management strategies in the context of the most recent economic conditions and 
forecasts. The finance committee's overall risk management strategy seeks to assist the consolidated group in meeting 
its financial targets, whilst minimising potential adverse effects on financial perfonnance. 

4,489,894 
4,489,894 

The reporting entity's investment strategy directs funds to be invested in interest bearing securities in the fixed income asset class to 
meet the following objectives: 

(i) Preservation of capital 
(ii) Maximise returns subject to the investment guidelines, showing a bias towards income distributions in preference to capital 
appreciation 
(iii) Ensure sufficient liquidity at all times, to meet cash flow requirements. 

Specific financial risk exposures and management 

The main risks the group is exposed to through its financial instruments are interest rates, liquidity risk and credit risk. 

a. Interest rate risk 

Exposure to interest rate risk arises on financial assets and financial liabilities recognised at reporting date whereby a 
future change in interest rates will affect future cash flows. 

As at 30 June 2019, the group is exposed to changes in market interest rates through cash at bank held at variable interest rates and 
floating rate notes and other interest securities with rates linked to variable benchmarks such as the bank bill swap rate. 
For further details on interest rate risk refer to Note 20g. 

In the FIIG investment portfolio, interest rate risk is measured by modified duration (MDur). MDur measures 
the average time it takes for interest rates to be reset, reflecting the sensitivity of the portfolio to changes in interest rates. The 
maximum modified duration of the portfolio set under the investment strategy is 4 years. 
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20, Fin■nci■I rl•k m■n■11ement (continued) 

b. Liquidity risk 

Liquidity risk arises from the possibility that the group might encounter difficulty in settling its debts or othel'Vlise meeting 
its obligations relating to financial liabilities. The group manages this risk by monitoring forecast cash flows, maintaining 
a reputable credit profile, managing credit risk related to financial assets, and only investing surplus cash with major 
flnancial institutions and licenced investment custodians. 

The tables below reflect the undiscounted contractual maturity analysis for financial liabilities. Cash flows realised from 
financial assets reflect management's expectation as to the liming of realisation. Actual timing may therefore differ from 
that disclosed. The timing of cash flows presented in the table to settle financial liabilities reflect the ear1iest contractual 
settlement dates and do not reflect management's expectations that banking facilities will be rolled forward. 

The direction to the FIIG investment financial asset portfolio manager is for a minimum of 75% of the portfolio by market value be 
invested in liquid assets at all times. 

Consolidated entity 

2019 Within 1 Year 1 - 5 Years Over 5 years Total 

Financial liabilltlas due for payment 
Trade and other payables 5124lt1031 5.243,031 
Total expected outflows 5&43,031 5&!431031 
Financial assets - c■sh flows realisable 
Cash and cash equivalents 4,833,226 4,833,226 
Trade and other receivables 2,348,863 2,346,863 
FIIG investment portfolio 223,307 969,230 1,193,837 2,386.374 
Total anticipated inflows 71<403,396 969,230 1:1931837 9,588,463 
Net (outflow)/ Inflow on financial instruments 2,160,365 9611,230 1,193,837 4.323,-432 

2018 Within 1 Year 1 - 5 Years Over 5 years Total 

Financial liabilities due for payment 
Trade and other payables 318711573 3.871,573 
Total expected outflo- 31871 1573 31871.&73 
Financial assets - cash flows realisable 
Cash and cash equivalents 5,872,227 5,872,227 
Trade and other receivables 1,954,444 1,954,444 
Held-to-maturity financial assets 601258 245,809 188,166 492,223 
Total anticipated Inflows 7,888,929 2461809 188,156 8,318,894 
Net (outflow) I inflow on financial in1truments 4101-5,356 245,909 188,156 4,447,321 

Parent entity 

2019 Within 1 Year 1 - 5 Years Over 5 years Total 

Financial liabilitiea due for payment 
Trade and other payables 5,808,824 5808,624 
Total expected outflows 151808,624 S-.!!!i624 
Financial assets - cash flows realisable 
Cash and cash equivalents 4,730,144 4,730,144 
Trade and other receivables 3,054,307 3,054,307 
FIIG investment portfolio 223,307 9691230 1,1931837 2,386,374 
Total anticipated inflows 81007i768 11691230 11193.837 10,170,825 
Net (outflow) I inflow on financial instruments 2,189,134 969,230 1,193,837 4,362,201 
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20. Financial risk management (continued) 

2018 Total Within 1 Year 1 -5 Years Over 5 years 

Financial liabilities due for payment 
Trade and other payables 
Total expected outflows 
Financial assets - cash flows realisable 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Trade and other receivables 
Held-to-maturity financial assets 
Total anticipated inflows 
Net (outflow) / inflow on financial instruments 

c. Foreign exchange risk 

The group is not exposed to fluctuations in foreign currency. 

d. Credit risk 

4,489,894 
4,469,89,4 

5,807,620 
2,617,372 

60,258 245,809 186,156 
8,485.250 245,809 188,158 
4,015,356 245,809 186,156 

Exposure to credit risk relating to financial assets arises from the potential non-performance by counterparties of 
contract obligations that could lead to a financial loss to the group. 

Credit risk is managed through maintaining procedures ensuring, to the extent possible, that customers and 
counterparties to transactions are of sound credit worthiness. It includes the utilisation of systems for the approval, 
granting and renewal of credit limits, the regular monitoring of exposures against such limits and the monitoring of the 
financial stability of significant customers and counterparties. Such monitoring is used in assessing expected credit 
losses. Credit terms are generally 30 days from the date of invoice. 

Risk is also minimised through investing surplus funds In financial institutions that maintain a high credit rating or in 
entities that the Branch Committee has otherwise cleared as being financially sound. 

Credit risk exposures 

The maximum exposure to credit risk by class of recognised financial assets at reporting date, excluding the value of any 
collateral or other security held, is the equivalent to the carrying value and classification of those financial assets (net of 

4,489,894' 
4.4811,IIM 

5,807,620 
2,617,372 

492,223 
8,917,215 
4,447,321 

any provisions) as presented in the statement of financial position. There are no material amounts of collateral held as security at 30 
June 2019 (2018: nil). 

Trade and other receivables that are neither past due or impaired are considered to be of high credit quality. Aggregates 
of such amounts are as detailed at Note 9. 

The group does not have any material credit risk exposure to any single receivable or group of receivables under 
financial instruments entered into by the consolidated group. The trade receivables balances at 30 June 2019 and 30 
June 2018 do not include any counterparties with external credit ratings. Customers are assessed for credit worthiness 
using the criteria detailed above. 

Credit risk related to balances with banks and other financial institutions is managed by the finance committee in 
accordance with approved committee of management policy. Such policy allows 50% of available cash reserves to be invested 
in the FIIG investment portfolio held by a licenced investment custodian. A minimum of 50% of the portfolio is to be 
invested in securities with a long term rating equivalent to S&P A- or higher. The following table provides information regarding the 
credit risk relating to cash and money market securities based on S&P counterparty credit ratings. 
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20. Financial risk management (continued) 

Notes 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Consolidated Entity 
2019 

$ 

Parent Entity 
2018 2019 2018 

$ $ $ 

- AA- rated 4,717,271 5,865,914 4,614,189 5,801,307 
- BBB rated 115,456 5,813 115,456 5,813 
- Cash on hand 500 500 1500 500 

8 4,133,228 5,872,227 4.73011"4 5,807,620 
FIIG investment portfolio 
- Unrated by S&P 1,109,140 256,007 1,109,140 256,007 
- BBB+ rated 447,847 53,979 447,847 53,979 
- BBB rated 556,920 80,687 555,920 80,687 
- BBB- rated 223,308 101,550 223,308 
- BB+ rated I0,159 I0,159 

11 213H,a74 492,223 2,H!,374 
e. Price risk 

Price risk relates to the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of 
changes in market prices. 

The group is not exposed to any material commodity price risk. 

Fair value measurement 

101,550 

492,223 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market 
participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the 
asset or transfer the liability takes place either: 

(a) In the principal market for the asset or liability; or 
(b) In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. 

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the group. The fair value of an asset or liability is measured 
using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants 
act in their economic best interest. 

Management and the Branch Committee of the Group assessed that cash, trade and other receivables and trade and other payables 
approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short term maturities of these instruments. 

For other financial assets, the group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient 
data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable 
inputs. 

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, 
described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole: 

- Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities 
- Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or 
indirectly observable 
- Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable 

The following table contains the carrying amounts and related fair values for the Group's financial assets and liabilities. 

Page44 



The l'hermecy Guild of Austr■II• (Queen•l■nd Branch) 

and It• controlled entttl■• 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
for the year ended 30 June 2019 

20. Financial rl•k management (continued} 

Consolidated Entity 

Financial assets 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Trade and other receivables 
FIIG investment portfolio 
Total financial assets 

Financial liabilities 
Trade and other payables 
Total financial liabilities 

Parent Entity 

Financial assets 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Trade and other receivables 
FIIG investment portfolio 
Units in controlled unit trust 
Total financial assets 

Financial liabilities 
Trade and other payables 
Total financial liabllltles 

Notes 

8 
9 

11 

15 

8 
9 

11 
11 

15 

Carrying 
Amount 

2019 
$ 

4,833,226 
2,348,863 
2,381,374 
8,1181,483 

1,243,031 

Carrying 
Amount 

2019 
$ 

4,730,144 
3,014,307 
2,386,374 
4,171.190 

14.342,fi11 

5.801,824 
8,808,824 

Fair Value 

2019 
$ 

4,833,226 
2,348,863 
2.3841.374 

s,2431031 
5,243,031 

Fair Value 

2019 
$ 

4,730,144 
3,054,307 
2,386,374 
4,171,180 

14,342,111 

1,aoa,124 
1,aoa,124 

Carrying 
Amount 

2018 
$ 

5,872,227 
1,954,444 

492,223 
8,318,894 

3,871,573 
3,871,573 

Carrying 
Amount 

2018 
$ 

5,807,820 
2,617,372 

492,223 
4.167,301 

13,084,518 

4,469,894 
4,489,884 

Under AASB 139 the available-for-sale financial assets being the units in the wholly-owned trust were measured at cost. 

Fair Value 

2018 
$ 

5,872,227 
1,954,444 

492,223 
8.318.894 

3,871,573 
3,871,573 

Fair Value 

2018 
$ 

5,807,820 
2,617,372 

492,223 
4,167,301 

13,084,518 

4,469,894 
4,469,894 

Upon transition to AASB 9, this investment is measured at fair value through profit and loss. The fair value of the investment is 
based on independent expert valuation of the key asset held by the unit trust, in accordance with Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy. 

The fair value of the FIIG investment portfolio is based on quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets, in 
accordance with Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy. 

Fair value hierarchy - 30 June 2019 
Parent Entity 

Assets measured at fair value 
Units in controlled unit trust 

g. Sensitivity analysis 

Date of 
Valuation 

30/06/2019 

Level1 Level2 

4,171,690 
4,171,690 

The following table illustrates sensitivities lo the group's exposures lo changes in interest rates and equity prices. The 
table indicates the impact on how profit and equity values reported at balance date would have been affected by 
changes in the relevant risk variable that management considers to be reasonably possible. These sensitivities assume 
that the movement in a particular variable is independent of other variables. 

Levell 

Notes Consolidated Entity Parent Entity 

Year-ended 30 June 2019 
+ I - 1 % in interest rates 

Year-ended 30 June 2018 
+ /-1% in interest rates 

Profit Equity 
$ $ 

+/-34,788 +/-34,788 

+/- 28,573 +/-2B,573 

Profit Equity 
$ $ 

+/- 34,768 +/-34,76B 

+/- 2B,573 +/- 28,573 

The above interest rate sensitivity analysis has been performed on the assumption that all other variables remain 
unchanged. 
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21. Event• after reporting date 

As of the date of the signing of this report the Committee of Management were not aware of any events which materially affect the 
information presented In this financial report. 

22, Related party transaction• 

The entity's related parties are its controlled entities (see note 12) and Branch Committee Members. The sales to and 
purchases from related parties are made on tenns equivalent to those that prevail in arm's length transactions. 
Outstanding balances for sales and purchases at the year-end are unsecured and interest free and settlement occurs 
in cash. There have been no guarantees provided or received for any related party receivables or payables. For the 
year ended 30 June 2019, the Group has not recorded any lmpainnent of receivables relating to amounts owed by 
related parties and declared person or body (2018: $Nil). This assessment is undertaken each financial year through 
examining the financial position of the related party and the market in which the related party operates. 

No expected credit losses have been raised in relation to any outstanding balances, and no expense has been recognised 
in respect of expected credit losses due from a loan to a related party. 

The following persons were members of the Branch Committee and Branch Executive during the financial year: 

Branch Executive 
K Sclavos (full year) 
R Xynias (full year) 

Branch Committee 
P Jaffar (full year) 
T Logan (full year) 
C Owen (full year) 
K Sclavos (full year) 
L Walker (full year) 
C Whalan (full year) 

a. Subsidiary of Parent Entity 

The Guild Properties (Queensland) Unit Trust 

Revenue received from distributions 
Recovery of expenses paid on behalf of Trust 

Expenses paid for rent 
Capital contributions paid 
Retum of units to settle amounts payable to Trust 

b. Other reporting units 

The Phannacy Guild of Australia 
- Revenue received for Phannacy Transfonnation 
program 
- Revenue received for events 
- Revenue received for other sales and recovery of 
costs 

- Expenses paid for capitation fees 
- Expenses paid for capitation fees - Fighting Fund 
- Expenses paid for purchases and services 

Pharmacy Guild of Australia - ACT Branch 
- Revenue received for events 

- Expenses paid for commissions 
- Expenses paid for purchases and services 

Notes 

3 

3 

4a 
4a 

C Owen (full year) 
T Twomey (full year) 

V Kumar (full year) 
A Miloslic (full year) 
A Seeto (full year) 
T Twomey (full year) 
F Watson (full year) 
R Xynias (full year) 

Consolidated Entity 
2019 2018 

$ $ 

926,678 925,578 
57,S97 32,686 

62,203 5B,105 

502,442 524,628 
310,500 313,875 

89,613 108,146 

118 884 

16 
3,081 3,747 
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Parent Entity 
2019 

$ 

524,386 
169,789 

530,225 
4,389 

925,578 
57,397 

62,203 

502,442 
310,500 

89,61S 

118 

15 
3,088 

2018 
$ 

548,004 
83,597 

569,150 
7,301 

1,705,720 

925,578 
32,686 

58,105 

524,628 
313,875 
108,146 

884 

3,747 
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22, Related party transactions (continued) 
Notes 

Pharmacy Guild of Australia - NSW Branch 

- Revenue received for commission income 
- Revenue received for events 
- Revenue received for other sales and recovery of costs 

- Expenses paid for commissions 
- Expenses paid for purchases and services 

Pharmacy Guild of Australia - NT Branch 

- Revenue received for events 
- Revenue received for other sales and recovery of costs 

- Expenses paid for commissions 
- Expenses paid for purchases and services 

Pharmacy Guild of Australia - SA Branch 

- Revenue received for events 

- Expenses paid for commissions 
- Expenses paid for purchases and services 

Pharmacy Guild of Australia - Tasmania Branch 

- Revenue received for events 
- Revenue received for other sales and recovery of costs 

- Expenses paid for commissions 
- Expenses paid for purchases and services 

Pharmacy Guild of Australia - Victoria Branch 

- Revenue received for events 
- Revenue received for other sales and recovery of costs 

- Expenses paid for commissions 
- Expenses paid for purchases and services 

Pharmacy Guild of Australia - WA Branch 

- Revenue received for events 
- Revenue received for other sales and recovery of costs 

- Expenses paid for commissions 
- Expenses paid for purchases and services 

c. Other related parties 

Fred IT Group 

- Revenue received for events 

Gold Cross Products and Services Pty Ltd 

- Revenue received for events 
- Revenue received for rent 
- Revenue received for other sales and recovery of costs 
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Consolidated Entity 
2019 2018 

$ $ 

1,631 666 
4,923 2,250 
1,882 2,909 

38,712 
21,193 14,829 

350 1,113 
99 

3,584 2,089 

6,885 5,868 

4,783 3,868 

2,270 91 
365 

80 
3,943 4,491 

515 100 

635 
7,593 7,763 

227 
409 205 

390 
2,476 2,922 

102,832 75,316 

74,000 59,030 
140,250 24,496 

5,276 5,780 

Parent Entity 
2019 2018 

$ $ 

1,631 666 
4,923 2,250 
1,982 2,909 

36,712 
21,193 14,829 

350 1,113 
99 

3,584 2,089 

6,885 5,868 

4,783 3,868 

2,270 91 
365 

60 
3,943 4,491 

515 100 

635 
7,593 7,763 

227 
409 205 

390 
2,476 2,922 

102,832 75,316 

74,000 59,030 
24,496 

5,276 5,780 
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22. Related party tr•n•actlon• (continued) 
Notes 

Guild Group Holdings Lid 

- Revenue received for events 
- Revenue received for other sales and recovery of costs 

Guild Insurance Ltd 

- Revenue received for events 

- Expenses paid for purchases and services 

Guildlink Ply Lid 

- Revenue received for events 
- Revenue received for rent 

Guild Superannuation Services Lid 

- Revenue received for events 

Guild Trustee Services Ply Ltd 

- Revenue received for events 

Meridian Lawyers Limited 

- Revenue received for events 

- Expenses paid for purchases end services 

d. Companies associated with members of the Branch 
Committee 

Event consulting, speaker fees and management fees paid to 
a company controlled by Mr K Sdavos 

Rent revenue received for from a company controlled by 
MrK Sclavos 

Recovery of expenses paid on behalf of a company controlled 
by Mr K Sclavos 

Remuneration paid to Mrs A Seeto for part-time 
employment 
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Consolidated Entity 
2018 2018 

$ $ 

81,818 
2,676 1,284 

101,218 7,473 

57,970 46,807 

31,018 48,359 
13,153 

400 18,673 

11,241 10,000 

11,898 15,136 

5,577 

159,052 157,917 

12,771 12,521 

142 

11,277 15,817 

Parent Entity 
2019 2018 

$ $ 

81,818 
2,676 1,284 

101,218 7,473 

57,970 46,807 

31,018 48,359 
13,153 

400 18,673 

11,241 10,000 

11,698 15,136 

6,577 

158,052 157,917 

12,771 12,521 

142 

11,277 15,817 
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23, Leasing commitments 

The parent entity leases the premises in which they operate from The Guild Properties (Queensland) Unit Trust which forms part of 
the consolidated group. The Branch Committee has agreed that an ongoing rental payment of $530,225 per annum is paid for the 
use of the premises (2018: $569,150 per annum). This is payable annually in the books of the Parent Entity, however ellminated in 
the Consolidated Entity due to The Unit Trust being part of the Consolidated Group. 

Notes 

a. Operating Lease Commitments 

Non-cancellable operating leases contracted for but not capitalised 
in the financial statements 

Payable - minimum lease payments 
- not later than 12 months 
• between 12 months and five years 

Consolidated Entity 
2019 2018 

$ $ 

17,578 
35,155 

13,737 
41,213 

Parent Entity 
2019 

$ 

17,578 
35,155 

2018 
$ 

54.950 52,733 54,950 

The entity has entered into an equipment lease commencing 5 July 2017 with a five-year term with lease instalments payable 
monthly. The instalments are fixed, but were renegotiated during the prior period. 

Lease expense during the period amounted to $15,658 (2018: $13,737) representing the minimum lease payments. 

b. Lessor Disclosures 

Notes 

Lease commitments receivable: 
Not later than one year 
Later than one year but not later than 5 years 

Consolidated Entity 
2019 2018 

$ $ 

132,600 
354.440 

62,500 

82.500 

Parent Entity 
2019 

$ 
2018 

$ 

The Guild Properties Trust leases space within their buildings to related party tenants. The lease option was exercised during the 
financial year for a second term of 4 years ending 31 December 2022, with an option to extend of 5 years. Rental charges are based 
on fixed increments within the lease agreement. 

24. Entity details 

The registered office and principal place of business of the entity is: 
The Pharmacy Guild of Australia (Queensland Branch) 
132 Leichhardt Street 
SPRING HILL QLD 4004 
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The Pharmacy Guild of Australia (Queensland Branch) 

and its controlled entities 

Officer Declaration Statement 

I, Trent Twomey, being the Branch President of the Pharmacy Guild of Australia (Queensland Branch), 
declare that the following activities did not occur during the reporting period ending 30 June 2019. 

The reporting unit did not: 

• agree to receive financial support from another reporting unit to continue as a going concern (refers 

to agreement regarding financial support not dollar amount) 
· agree to provide financial support to another reporting unit to ensure they continue as a going 
concern (refers to agreement regarding financial support not dollar amount) 
• acquire an asset or liability due to an amalgamation under Part 2 of Chapter 3 of the RO Act, a 

restructure of the branches of an organisation, a determination or revocation by the General Manager, 
Fair Work Commission 

receive capitation fees from another reporting unit 
receive revenue via compulsory levies 
receive donations 
receive revenue from undertaking recovery of wages activity 
incur fees as consideration for employers making payroll deductions of membership subscriptions 
pay affiliation fees to other entity 
pay compulsory levies 
pay a grant that was $1,000 or less 
pay a grant that exceeded $1,000 
pay to a person fees or allowances to attend conferences or meetings as a representative of the 

reporting unit 
pay legal costs relating to litigation 

• pay a penalty imposed under the RO Act or the Fair Work Act 2009 
• have a payable to an employer for that employer making payroll deductions of membership 
subscriptions 
• have a payable in respect of legal costs relating to litigation 
• have a fund or account for compulsory levies, voluntary contributions or required by the rules of the 
organisation or branch 
• transfer to or withdraw from a fund (other than the general fund), account, asset or controlled 

entity 
have a balance within the general fund 
have another entity administer the financial affairs of the reporting unit 
make a payment to a former relaM!W of the reporting unit 

~;;:t~:d ~~t!e:~g;::~~:=~e;~~~-EN·~-~~~~~: 8°AANC;··· .. Esi~~~~········ 
✓ 

Dated this 13th day of September 2019 
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